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S. Con. Res. 27

Saturday, February 2, 1946
Congress of the United States,
Joint Committee on the Investigation
of Pearl Harbor Attack,
Washington, D, C,
The Joint Committee met, pursuant to adjournment, at
10:00 a.m., in the Caucus Room (room 318), Senate Office
Building, Senator Alben W. Barkley (chairman) presiding.
Preéont: Senators Barkley (chairman), George, Lucas,
Ferguson and Brewster.
Representatives Cooper (vice chairman), Clark, Murphy,
Gearhart and Keefe,
" Also present: Seth W. Richardson, General Counsel;
Samuel H. Kaufman, Assoclate General Counsel, and John E,.

Masten, of counsel, for the Joint Committee.




Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson
The Chairman: The committee will be in order.
Counsel, I believe, was still examining the witness.

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN LAURANCE FRY SAFFORD
(Resumed)

Mr. Richardson: Captain, have you a copy of Exhibit
142 before you?

Captain Safferd: I have.

Mr. RXchardson: As I understand it, the first winds
message that was intercepted was Circular No. 2353 shown
in Exhibit 1#2; is that correct?

Captain Safford: Not necessarily.

Mp. Richardson: Well, was there one before that?

Captain Safford: Circulars 2353 and 2354 were inter-

cepted on the same date, and I do not know which came

%
%
o
>
:
r
2
:
z
_3
o
0

first. Circular 2354 was translated by us two days before
2353.

Mr. Richardson: Then the only two intercepts estab-
lishing the so-called winds codes are contained in circulars
2353 and 23547

Captaln Safford: The only ones that we had in the
Navy Department.

Mr. Richardson: The only ones we knew anything about

at the time of this episode?

Captain Safford: Yes.
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Mr. Richardson: And after those messages came in
every effort was made that-could be made to see to it
that stations were warned to monitor, for the executes
under those messages?

Captain Safford: Nothing was done until we had re-
ceived a message from the Commander in Chief, Asiatic
Fleet, containing the translation of the same messages

| made by the British at Singepore.

Then we made every effort to mondtor for those messages.

Mr. Richardson: How long after this message came in
on November 19 then was the first monitoring direction
given to intercepting stations?

Captain Safford: It was sent out about 6 p. m.

Washington time on November 28, 1941.
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Mr. Richardson: Was it sent generally to all stations
that it was felt might be in a position to intercept the
execute?

Captain Safford: It was sent to all stations which
ve considered had the personnel problem, the trained per-
sonnel, available personnel, and proper material, to inter-
cept the message.

Mr. Richardson: How many stations do you know picked

up the messages now ildentified as 2353 and 23547

Captain Safford: I cannot tell you off-hand. I will
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witness gafford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

have to search through the records.

Mr. Richardson: Were there a great many of them?

Captain Safford: There were at least two in the
United States Navy, because they had translated the message,
the Dutch must have intercepted it because they trans-
lated it, and the Australians knew about 1it, and I don't
knﬁw how they got 1it.

Mr. Richardson: Now, how did 2353 come in in the
first instance to the intercepting station in the United
States?

Captain Safford: It was 1n the intercept of a radilo
message from Tokyo to San Francisco, but addressed to
Washington.

Mr.Richardson: Was it in code?

Captain Safford: It was in code, in the Japanese
code which wve call {:19.

Mr. Richardson: Was it in the form of message in
which the Japanese were accustomed to send out weather
broadcasts?

Captain Safford: I don't understand that question.

Mr. Richardson: Do you know of weather broadcasts
the Japanese stations were sending out generally?

Captain Safford: The Japanese sent out weather

forecests on most of thelr broadcasts just the way the United
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

States sent out weather forecasts on most of its officlal
broadcasts. ;

Mr. Richardson: Would the form of broadcast as sent
out by the Japanese be the form in wvhich Circular 2353
came in?

Captain Safford: No, because a weather broadcast
would con;ist of nothing but weather, and this prescribed
that an apparent or false weather report be inserted in the
middle of news. That was never done in the Japanese broad-
;msts.

Mr. Richardson: Was 2353 sent out in Morse code?

Captain Safford: I do not understand.

Mr. Richardson: You understand what the Japanese sending
messages in the Morse code in Japanese means?

Captain Safford: Yes.

Mr.Richardson: Was this message 2353 sent out in that
wvay? |

Captain Safford: That was sent out in International
Morse code, because it had to be recelved by American opera-
tors at San Francisco who did not know the Morse code.

Mr. Richerdson: And that was true of 23537
Captain Safford: It was true of 2353 and true of every

translation given in this book.

Mr. Richardson: That would inciude 23537
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Captain Safford: Yes, sir.

My. Murphy: Mr. Chalrman, the wvitness had some paper
in his left hand when he said everything in there wvas by
International Morse code. May we have what that paper
48? He had it in his left hand. He said everything was
International Morse code. |

Mr. Kaufman: That is Exhiblt 142,

Captain Safford: Every message quoted in Exhibit 142,
also the message quoted in Exhibit 1, was sent out in
International Morse code.

Mr. Murphy: Every message?

Mr. Richardson: That is right.

Now, in that code, the Japanese words which are shown
in Circular 2353 as appear 1n Exhibit 142, appear as shown:

HIGASHI NO KAZEAME.

The three Japanese words were 1n the message as sent
out in International code?

Captein Safford: The words HIGASHI NO KAZEAME and
the other two Japanese expressions were taken after decrypt-
ing the original Japanese message and converting the codes
langhaga into Japanese.

'Mp. Richardson: And then the next step would be to

R
translate the Japanese?

Captain Safford: The next step would be tO translate




Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

h7 the Japanese into English, but leaving the code expres-

sions alone because we didn't want to alter the exact

wvording used.

4
Mr. Richardson: Well, the meaning of the Japanese
s ;
wvords that remein in Circular 2353 as it appears in Exhiblt
8

142 is the meaning that appears in the lower left-hand

corner:

EAST WIND RAIN, would be HIGASHI NO KAZEAME;

NORTH WIND CLOUDY -~ you pronounce that --
10

§ Captain Safford: Kitanokaze Kumori.
. é - Mr. Richardson: WEST WIND CLEAR.
f ; 4 Captain Safford: Nishi no kaze ha.ro‘.
% :: Mr. Richardson: All right.
o 1 Now, when you turn to Circular 2354, the only difference
a 18

between the two messages would be that under 2354 only

16
a single word indicating a compass point would be included

17
in the general intelligenhce broadcast referred to in that

dispatch?

10 .
Captain Safford: That is partielly correct. There

20
wvas also the further requirement that that single word

21
, be repeated five times at the beginning and at the end

22
of the message. 2353 required that phrase be added 1n

23
the middle of the daily Japanese language shortwave broadcast,

24
Mr. Richardson: As a matter of fact there were three
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

requirements to comply with 2353%

Captain Safford: That is correct.

Mr. Richardson: The signal had to be in the middle,
it also had to be at the end, the broadcast had to be a
weather forecast, and each sentence had to be repeated
twice?

Captain Safford: And it had to be in the Japanese

language.
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Questions by: Mr. Riochardson

Witness Safford

Mr. Richardson: Where do you find in ociroular 2363 that
1t had to be in the Japanese lanzuage?

Captatn Safford: It says: "The following warning will

be added in the middle of the dally Japanese language

short wave news broadoast."

Mr. Richardson: You interpreted that to mean that in
addition to being in the middle of the daily Japanese language
short wave news broadoast the words themselves had to be 1n
Japanese?

Captain Safford:l That 18 true and the Tres?t of the broad-
oast had to be in Japanese also.

Mr. Richardson: Well, 1% doesn't say 8o, does 1t7

Captain Safford: It does s8ay 80,

Mr. Richardson: Where?

Captain Safford: It says: "The dally Japan~se language
short wave news broadocast,"

I Ww. Richardson: Yes, it says that the warning will be

added in the middle of the dailly Japanese language short wave

| news broadcast,

Captain Safford: That 18 correct.
Mr. Richardson: But it does not say what is put in th.o

middle had to be 1n gangkrit or Latin or English or Japanese,

| does 1t7

Captain Safford: It merely gave the words which they
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr, Richardson

would use.
Mr. Rychardson: Right. Now, on 2354, Captain, the first
L requirement was that the dispatch -- the notlce was to be a

general intelligence broadocast? .
I

|

Captain Safford: That is correoct,
Mr. Richardson: Would thet mean a radlo broadoast?
Captain Safford: That meant a raiio broadcast.
Mr. Richardson: And then those compass words that we
E have referréd to that are shown in 2354 had to be at the
beginning of that broadcast?
Captain Safford: And at the end.
* Mr. Richardson: And &t the end of the broadcast and had

to be repeated five times?

‘ Captain Safford: That 18 oorrect.

| Mr, Richardson: And included at the beginning and end?

I Captain Safford: That 1s corraoct,

Mr. Richardson: All right. Now, unless the execute or

an alleged exeoute that came to your attention oomplied with
the direotions contained in one or the other of those two
code messages would you interpret it to be an exeoute of the
original messsge?

Captain Safford: If 1% departed radically from those

instruotions we would regard 1t as having nothing to do with

the oxpeotéd execute of those messSgZes,
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Mr. Richardson: Suppose 1t 414 not appear in the middle,
would that eliminate 1t?

Captain Safford: Not necessarily but we would regard 1%t
with susplolon. '

Mr. Richardson: Supp08se 1t was not in a short wave news
broadcast, would that eliminate 1t?

Captaln Safford: The word on "short wave" was incorrect-
1y translated by a green tanslator. The correct translaticn
of that word was "overseas broadcast" .

Mr. Richardson: Well, now, Just wait a minute, You do

12 || not understand the Japanese language yourself , do you?

|
13

14
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Captain Safford: That 18 correct.

Mr. Riqochardson: Well, then, are you in a position of your
own knowledge to tell us what that correct translation would
bel

Captain Safford: 1 suggest that the commlittee get a
sorreot translation both in 2353 and 2354, a full translation
with no words on it at the disoretion of the translator,

Mr. Richardson: And the only message that ycu knew any-
thing ebout when this episode on the winds execute came Uup
was this message 2353 and 23547

Captain S affords: Cch, no, we had the British translation

“at the same time and we had probably verified our own trans-

lations immediately we found a oonflioting translation coming




Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

in from the Navy, from the Commander-in-Chief Asiatic Fleet.
That was custom.

Mr. Rjchardson: I don't want any probably b:is iness in

thils, Was there another translation of the Japanese broadoast
that was the basis for 2353 that was made by our authority
| here? If so, where is 1it?

- Captaln Safford: There 1s no other on record,

Mr, Rjchardson: Well, then the only one thut yeu had
avallable to you that wae over our own staticns was 2353 and
2354 on the morning of December 4tht

Captain Safford: That 18 oorrect if we are restriocted
to what was intercepted by our own 8taticns,

Mr. Richardson: That is right, Now, the only other one
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avallable to you was the one sent in from the Commander of
the Asiatic Fleet?
Captain Safford: Thut is correot, up until shortly af-
ter we had actually intercepted the winds execute message.
Mr, Richardson: The faot 15,‘13 it not, Captain, that

in your earlier testimony before Admiral Hewltt and in your

earlier testimony before Admiral Hart you testified, did you
not, that the interpretation that wae pluoced upon the messacge
that you saw on the morning of December 4th was based upon

| the meanling given to you by the Foote and the Thorp broadcast

| that had ocome in from Canberra and Batavia?! Didn't you so
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

testifry?

Captain Safford: I will have to check that,

Mr. Richardson: All right.

Captain Safford: What page is that on?

Mr. Richardson: I am referring first to page 748 of the
Navy Court of Inquiry. My point is, Captain, - I want you to
get the p'oint, -« d1dn't you in your testimony there base your
interpretation of the meaning of this exeoute on the Dutoh
translasion and the Foote translation and that ycu 41d not say
any thing whatever about the Hart translatlon?

Mr. Murphy: Hart? The Hart translatlon? _

Mr. Richardson: Admiral Hart, the Commander-in-Chief of

the Asiatioc Fleet,

Ceptain Safford: What page 1s that agailn, please?
Mr. Richardson: This is 748 of the Navy Indulry.

Captain Safford: I answered those questions as you gtated,

]

Mr. Richardson: All right. And in your written state-
l

‘ment that you have read to the crmmittee in this proceeding

lyou base your interpretation on the message that had come 1in

on November 28th from the Commander-in-Chief of the #slatlo
Fleet,
Captain Safford: That 18 correct.

Mr, Richardson: Now, isn't the reason that you changed

| because you dlscovered that the Foote message and the Thorp




D 'A "NOLDNIHSEYM "InYd ® QuvMm

10

12

13

4

13

16

17

19

20

et

23

24

23

Witness Safford

Questions by: Mr. Richardson

message had come in after you made your interpretiz-tion of the
message on the morning of December 4th and, therefore, you
could not have relied on it and then didn't you turn to the
moaéage from the Commander-in-Chlef of the Agiatio Fleet as
the source of your interpretation? Isn't that a specifio
reason why ycu did 1t?

Captain Safford: No,

Mr. Rjochardson: All right, that 18 allj that answers 1%,

Now, will you turn to 1-C 1n exhibit 1427 It is about
the third or fourth pages,

Captain S afford: I see 1T,

Mr. Richardsoni Now, that is a ocopy of our message from
the Cemmander-in-Chief of the Aslatioc Fleet, 1lsn't 1t?

Captain Safford: That 1s ocorrect, sir.

Mr. Richardson: And that is the one that in your state-
ment to the committee you relied on for your interpretation
of the messaze that you got on the morning of December 4th?

Captailn Safford: At the time the winds message was
interocepted and translated by Kramer and sent up to hizher
authority, that is ocorreot,

Mr., Richardson: All right. Now, will you tell me what
there 18 in that messaze that says that the languaze that was

to be used meant war? Read it to me from the messae.

Captain Safford: "NISHI NISHI ENGLAND INCLUDING OCCUPA-
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1 |
a TION OF THAI OR INVASION OF MALAYA AND NEI', whioch

3 ||18 an abbreviation for Netherlands Sast Indies.

4 | Mr, Richardson: Now, stop right there. We had been

5 ||gettin; messages, had we not, for tendays with- reference to
6 || the movements of the Japanese toward the Thai Peninsula and
) 7 || the ococupation of Malasia, hadn't we?
8 Captain Safford: We had numerous signs indlcating that
2 [|they were possibly contemplating an aot of war, correct.
10 Mr. Rychardson: Toward those places, toward the Thal

1 Peninsulza and Malagia?

-
:
»
) :
r 13 Captain Safford: That 18 correct.
2
; 13 | Mr. Richardson: So there wasn't anything 1in that language
3]
2 14 |lwith reference to "NISHI NISHI" that was elther new or parti-
o
° 13 |lcularly startling to us, was there, at that time?
18 | Captain Safford: Nothing except the confirmation of our
17 susplolions or deductions.
18 | Mr. Richardson: And the only thing you oould draw, the
19 l only deduction you could draw from it fairly, Captain, would
20 be that if the execute messaze came in that said "NISHI NISHI®
| |
- 21 | i1t would mean that the Japs were goling after England by going

22 |lupon that oocupation, did it not, or invasion of Malaya?

23 Captain Safford: And the Netherlands East Indles, that

24 | 18 correct.

25 Mr, Rjchardson: Now, proceed and show me what there 1is
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Witness Sa fford Questions by: Mr.Richardson

in that diepatoh that shows war on the United States?
Captain Safford: There 1s nothing in the literal trans-
1ation of that dispatoh which saye war on the United States.

Mr. Richardson: Now, when you turn back, Captalin, to

with the definition, "Japan-U.8. relations 1n danger."
Do you find anything in the dispatoh from the Commander-

in-Chief of the #siatic Fleet that changes that interpreta-

tion of "HIGASHI NO KAZEAME", or whaitever it 1s?

Captain Safford: There 1s nothing that changes the

translation of that phrase,

Mr. Richardson: #l1l1 right. This dispatch that you say
was the oxe&uto, which you say was what you had been looking
for, which was the great triumph of the Navy over the Army,
you say ocame in on the morning of December 4th about eizht
o'oclook?

Captain Safford: After 8:00; shortly before 9.

Mr., Richardson: Well, now, you testified at least twloe
before, didn't you, Ca ptain, that 1t came in on the evening
of Decenber Jrd?l

Captain Safford: I was testifylng from memeTry and doing
the best I could without the aid of the written notes whioch 1

had unfortunately destroyed in December 1941,

1

| Mr. Rychardson: Well, they were atill destroyed when you
|
)

'
-
[
I -
b b .
" - -
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Witness Safford ' Questions by: Mr,Richardson

made your statement here to the ocmmittee, weren't theyt Tney

atill remained destroyed, 4idn't they?

Captain safford: Those notes remained destroyed, yes.

Mr. Rychardson: Well, what you maan 18 af ter you testil-
fiod in these earlier hearings you aat down with yocurself and
your pencil and you made some new notes, 18 that true?

Captain Safford: I got new written e vidence about two
weeks ago which up till that time had not been in my pos8ies-
sion. It helped me tremendously 1nuroﬁonstruot1ng what had
happened as well as refreshing my memory.

Mr. Ryochardson: VWell, now, Captuin, let us go lnto this
question.

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairman, may I request that the
written evidencebe now produced 80 that we may examine 1t7
I ask that his written evidence that was produced two weeks
ago be submitted to the committee.

The Vioce Chalrman: ﬁe said he obtained written evidenoce
about two weeks ago that refreshed his memory. Mr. Murphy
asks that that written evidence he precduced,

Mp, Murphy: And that it be spread gn the rsocord.

Mr. Richardson: What was that written evidence, Cap-

tain, what is the nature of 1t?

Captain Safford: Monthly reports from the interceptor

gtaticns at Winter Harbor, Maine and at Cheltenham, Maryland,
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| Witness Safford - Questions by: Mr. Richardaon

which I had requested two years ago and had been informed
ocould not be discovered. We made one more attempt about two
weeks ago and those partioular reports were loocated and my
assistant read them and got pertinent ﬁarts for me add I
have his penociled ooples of that stuff, 1 have quoted those
parts in my testlimony, in these extracts from the logs --
rather the monthly reports of Winter Harbor, Maine and Chel-
tenham, Maryland.

Mr. Rqichardson: But it is true, Captain, 18 it not, that
at legst twioce before under oath you placed the date of the
receipt of this execute message that you testifled concerning
on the evening of December J3rd?l |

Captain Safford: I bellieve I s8ald December 3rd or 4th,
I think I made 1t broader than that.

Mr. R{ohardaon: I don't think you did. Let me o0all

| your attention to your testimony at page 361 of the Hart in-

vestigution. Didn't you testify there as follows!

"The winds messaze was actually broadcast during the
evening of December 3, 1941 Washington time, whioch was
December 4th by Greenwioh time and Tokyo time,"

Captain S afford; That &8 ocorrect.
Mr, Richardson: And then to make sure that that was not

an error didn't you testify a little later in that same ex-

amination as follows:
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Witness Sa fford Questions by: Mr.Richardson

"The winds message was recelved in the Navy Depart-
ment during the evening of December 3rd while Lieutenant
(J.G.) Francis M. Brotherhcod, USNR, was on wataoh, "
Captain Safford: That is correot.

Mr. Rychardson: Well, now, Captain, you do not know your-
self of your own knowledge when the message was received, do

you?

Captain Safford: I do not know from first hand know=-

ledge eoxactly what time 1T wu8 received.

Mr. Righardson: All you know, Captaln, 18 that Kramer

| came to you with a plece of ppper in his hand that had a mes-

sage on 1t7
Captain Safforad: It was a plece of paper whioch I recog-
nized as the yellow paper from a roll on a teletype machine,
Mr. Rychardson: All right. Now, before we go into that

let me inquire, Captain, along this 1line. Now, after all of

| this episode had transpired and you had dest royed y our noteg--~
by the way, do you now ocntend that you made notes of what
| ocourred at the time this message ocame in?

Captain Safford: 1 made notes while events were fresh

in m7 memory as to the things which were not matters of offil-
oial record and were important to know, such as such things

as times of deliverles of certaln messages, and so forth,

|
| T he winds messa‘’e was then in existence, I oould have re-
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Witneses Sa fford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

ferred to it for anything that I w: nted and there would be no
oooasion to try to cheock the exact %ime at which 1t was lnler-

cepted.,

Mr. Richardson: You testiflied before the Army Board,

iidn't you?

Captain Safford: Correot.

Mr. Rychardson: #nd I refer now 1o pags 160 of the “rmy

Board. Didn't you testify as follows thera, Captaln:

"Captuin Safford: Kramder made his statements of
8th and 9th of December {pmedlately after the event when
I disocussed 1t fully with hihu I called for statements.
I talked to evarybody soncerned to see Af my people had
been negligent in any way, that this thing had been our
fsult. I made a very ocareful investlizatlion,

"General Russell: Did you make any reoord of that
investig.tion?

"Captain Safford: No, sir,”
vas that truel?

Captain Safford: There was no written record made. All

the notes I had in the rough form were destroyed when I got

the orders.

Mr,. Rqchardson: All rlghx.u New, Captain --

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chalrman, may I -- well, I don't want

to imerrupt. He testified yesterday the meallng wasd on the

-.l-l!-l-F-----------q----------IIIlIllllllllllllllllllll
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Witness Safford Questions by:! Mr. Richardson

15th and now he says there were notes made on the 8th and now
he says that on the 14th or 1l5th they were destroyed.

Mr. Rqochardscn: Captain, after all of this episode and
at the time of thils eplsode you had been a very pusy man,
hadn't you?

Captaln Safford: That 1s correot, yes, sir,

Mr. Richardson: You might almost say that you worked

day and night.

Captaln Safford: Not quite that much but I was working
long hours,

Mr, Richardson: Apd your staff was working hard?

Captain Safford: That 18 correct,

Mr. Riohardson: And your office had never been as busy
as 1t was during this week before the Pearl Harbor attack, had
1t?

Captaln S afford: That 1s correocs,
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson
Mr. Richardson: And after this episode with reference

to this so-called winds execute, you never turned your
attention to that matter until prior to the summer of

fall of 1943, did you, approximately two years?

Captain Safford: Approximately two years; a few
months less.

Mr. Richardson: And the fact is, 1s it not, Captain,
that in the fall of 1943, you concluded that you might be
a witness, and then you undertook, by inquiry, by investl-
gation, by conversation, by letters, to try and remember
what occurred during that period before the attack in
December, 19417

Captain Safford: I was doing more than that at that

time. I was engaged in writing up a history of radio in-

>
3
v
>
c
£
<
:
%
:
o
n

telligence from 1924 to 1941 by the direction and instruc-
tion of the Director of Naval Intelligence. That was
carried for seven mo;ths in my monthly report of progress,
in addition to doing that work.

Mr. Richardson: It was the official work you had
to do. You were very deeply exercised in trying to make up
your mind as to what you might testify to, i1f you were
called as a witness?

Captain Safford: I was trying to do double duty with

the same set of datsg.

}
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witness safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson
Mr. Richardson: And the other duty, I repeat again,

was © try and get your mind made up as to what the facts

were, so if you were called as & witness you could testl-
£y?

Captain Safford: So I could testify and not be con-
fused on the witness stand by counsel.

Mr. Richardaon: Now, Captain, I want you to know ﬁhat
I do not care a tinker's damn whether the winds execute
message came in or whether it did not. I am only lnter-
ested in whether there should be reviewed by the committee
all of the relisble facts that can be adduced so they can
reach a conclusion,

I do not want to mislead you or browbeat you, if I

talk rather loudly. It is because I am a rather loud

3
:
?
<
:
:

talking individual.

I just want to make 1£ clear that when you started,
in the fall of 1943 to prepare yourself as a witness, your
whole recollection was exceedingly hazy as to what had
happened two years before, wasn't 1t?

Captain Safford: There were a few outstanding factis
and the details linking them together were very hazy.

Mr. Richardson: Now, let me read you what you testified
to on that point in the Hewitt investigetion, at page 112:

"Captain Safford: In the fall of 1943, 1t appeared
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson
there was going to be a trial, a court martial of Admiral

Kimmel. It was hinted in the newspapers and various
people in the Navy Dopartmonﬁ'were getting testimony
ready for it. I realized I would be one of the important
witnesses, that my memory was very vaguse, and I began
looking around to get everything that I could to prepare
a written statement which I could fﬁllow as testimony.

"Phat was the time when I studied the Roberts report
carefully for the first time, and noted to reference to
the winds message, or to the message which McCollum had
written, and which I had seen, and which I thought had
been sent, and then I began talking to everybody who had
been around at the time and who knew T had been mixed up
in it, to see what they could remember to straighten me
out on the thing, and give me leads to follow down to
wvhere I got my hands on official messages, and things 80
1t would be a matter of fact and not a matter of memory.

"T also talked the thing over with whatever Army
people were still around at the time, and had anything in
this line, and bit by bit these facts appeared to come
together. -
"phe investigation was conducted, if you call it that,

for the purpose of preparing myself to take the stanﬂ as

a witness in a prospective court martiel of Admiral Kimmel."
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witness _[afford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Now, you regard that today, do you not, Captaln,
as a fair statement of how you brought your mind to a
factual conclusion as to what happened during that period,
that week prior to Pearl Harbor, in the fall of 1943%

Captain.Safford: That is correct.

Senator Lucas: 1941°?

Mr. Richardson: 1943,

Now, Captain --

Captain Safford: May I add something to that statement?

Mr. Richardson: Yes,

Captain Safford: At the tims I did this, I expected
to be called as a witness for the proaqqution, to repre-
sent the Navy Department, in the charges which I thought
would be preferred against Admiral Kimmel.

Mr. Richardson: Well, that made it all the more import-
ant, did it not, Captain, that you should testify as to
what you knew and not what you found out from what somebody
told you, because you were then dealing with the gullt or
innocence of a human being?

Captaln Safford: That 1s correct.

Mr. Richardson: Now, Captein, you were exceedingly
anxious to get hold of an execute message to the winds
code, were you not?y

Captain Safford: I first looked for the --
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson
h5 ; Mr. Richardson (mtorposins)z No, no. I am asking
. you as to your mental condition. 'fou vere very anxious,
? while you wvaited to see what the monitoring stations would
; send in to see when an execute code would come in?
: Captain Safford: That 1s correct.
; : Mr. Richardson: All right; Now the first tlime you
‘ y ever saw the message that you say in your statement was an
. execute message, was when Kramer brought it to you, some-
z time after 8 o'clock on the morning of December 49
_ § w Captain Safford: That is correct.
1 é - Mpr. Richardson: You were not a Japanese linguist?
" & Captain Safford: No.
§ 53 Mr. Richardson: You did not decode the message?
2 0 Captain Safford: No.
" Py Mr. Richardson: Do you know'under whose watch statlon
¥ the message came in? |
" Captain Safford: Lieutenant Murray was on watch at |
u the time.
i Mr. Richardson: Did not you specifically testify in
] o the former hearing that it came in to Lieutenant Brotherhood?
. K Captain Safford: I did on the first hea.rin'g, when
e I was under ths belief that it had come in on Brotherhood's
- - watch, because he told me it had.
:-. 2 Mn Richardson: Well, I will take up the Brotherhood
| 25

| p
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson
matter with you a little later.

I want to pursue this maﬁter just a moment.

Now, Kramer brought you this message, 1s that cor-
rect?

Captain Safford: That is correct.

Mr. Richardson: Now, there was some writing on the
message when he brought-it to you?

Captain.Safford: There was writing on the message.

Mr. Richardson: Now, outside of that writing, what
was on that message when he brought 1t to you?

Captain Safford: He had underscored the code words
in the middle of the message, so they stood out very
plainly. |

Mr. Richardson: Just tell me Cap.t.m, in what form
was this message? Was it in English?

Captain Safford: The message was in Japanese,

Mr, Richardson: All of 1t?

Captain Safford:- All of 1it.

Mr. Richardson: And you could not read Japanese?

Captain Safford: I can read a few words in Japanese,
if they point it out by underscoring, and I compared them
with the original words of the two winds codes.

 Mr. Richardson: Now, let us not go quite so fast on

that, Captailn.
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

When the message was brought to you by Kramer, was
it typewritten?

Captain Safford: It was the teletype message as
it came in the machine.

Mr. Richardson: In Japanese?

Captein Safford: In Japanese.

Mr. Richardson: .And w1th the exception of thes?ﬁl:
specific words, that you were watchingafpr,;xgu,did.npptgt-
tempt to read it in Japanese?

Captain Safford: I did not attempt to read 1it.

Mr. Richerdson: Now, there was some writing on that
message, was there not?

Captain Safford: That is correct.

My. Richardson: In handwriting?

Captain Safford: In_hﬁndwriting.

Mr. Richardson: In English?

Captain Safford: In English,.

Mr. Richerdson: What was written in longhand on that
message?

Captein Sefford: "War with England including NEI, o
and so forth. ™ar with the U.S." or possibly United
States, and "Peace with Russia.”

That is to the best of my recollection after four years.

Mr. Richardson: Well, it is not quite four years,




Witness Richardson Questions by: Mr. Richardson
h8 ; in view of the fact that this is the 5th time you are
3 testifying on it, is it, Captain?
Captain Safford: That 1s correct.
Mr. Richardson: Was there anything else written in ;

longhand on this message in Japanese, except those three

writing. §
Mr. Richardson: Well, there was no other handwriting g
on it but Kramer'is? ;

e ——————— et S e et e e ———e et —
W

3
4
8
8
phrases?
7 p
Captain Safford: There was nothing in Kramer's hand-
8
e)
g 10
b
o
s 11
» Captain Safford: No.
c
r 18
g Mr. Richardson: The only other writing there was on
x 13
g the paper was the teletype message in Japanese?
14
% I Captain Safford: And the identifying data, such as
n 18
| the frequency, time of intercept, station which sent 1it,
16 '

wvhich I glanced at, but promptly forgot.
Mp. Richardson: Well, that is not unreasonable,
Now, then Captain, that message that you got, with
respect to the Japanese words that were underlined which
you say K¥amer interpreted in longhand on the message,
vas a dead ringer execute for the original code message
2353 that had been sent out, was it not?

Cﬁptain Safford: That is correct, except that it

reversed it in the case of Russla, because ve thought no

17
18
19
<0
21
22
23
24
23
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

var would be no mention, but they gave a positive, speci-
fic mention as to Russia, but in a negative sense, vhich
ve oonqludod meant peace, or not war as yet.

Mr. Richardson: Well, then, Captain, we can dismiss
from our attention in connection with any examination of
you, or any contention of you as to the winds execute
circular 2354, cannot we?

Captain Safford: Let me see that.

Mr. Richardson: Because this execute could not have
been in completion of Circular 2354, could 1t?

Captain Safford: 2354 is out completely, except for
the fact that is what we expected to find in a Morse code
message, and it did not turn out that way.

Mr. Richardson: So that the only code message, winds
code message, so far as your testimony is concernd, that
the committee need pay any attention to is 23537

Captain Safford: That is correct.

Mr. Richardson: All right.

Now, were the words HIGASHI NO KAZEAME in the middle

of the broadcast?

Captain Safford: That is the place they were under-
scored.

Mr. Richardat;n: Were they also at the end?

Captain Safford: I do not know now. They wers not
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Witness Safford ~ Questions by: Mr. Richardson

underscored at the end if they were there.

Mp. Richardson: That would bes a very important item
in order to ascertain whether this was 1n£ended to be an
execute of 2353, would it not?

Captain Safford: Not necessarily. They would be
repeated at the end only as a precaution so that if they
missed the early part of the broadcast, they could pick
it up at the last and not lose it.

Mp. Richardson: Just a minute, Captain. ‘Don't you
think you are extending your authority a little when you
interpret what the Japanese meant in a code diraction? Did
not you tell me a few minutes ago that everyone of those
directions that were contained in 2353 wvere 1mpoftant to
be considered 1n.determin1ng'whother or not a given message
was an execute message?

Captain Saffltord: I said they were important, that
is correct.

Mr. Richardson: 'w011; you did not even look to find
out fhether these three sets of words that had been trans-
lated were also at the end of the message, did you?

Captain Safford: I never made guch a statement.

Mr. Richardson: Well, you did not?

. Captain Safford: I sald I cannot remember whether they

were repeated at the end or not. I was well satisfied that

_
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| Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

; | hll : that message was authentic, an authentic signal of the
| . ; execute given by the Japanese Government.
1 < Mr. Richardson: Captain, I am not the least interested
| ' X in whether you are satisfied or not. I am only interested
;'_ : in ascertaining whether, when you saw the message, you
’ endeavored to ascertain, as a careful, trained Intelligence
g man, whether it was an execute of the winds code message
; 2353, and consequently I asked you first, was it in the
; middle and you said yes; and I then asked you was it at the
,:; - end, and you said you did not look,
. :2 :: Now third, was each sentence repeated twice?
i Captain Safford: I did not say I did not look. I
§ g said I could not tell you from present memory.
8 x Mr. Richardson: Well, then, you cannot glve us any
| - help as to whether it was at the end, can you?
5 Captain Safford: I can give you no help at the present
§ time.
18
Mr. Richardson: But the fact that it was 1n the message
< just impressed you, so that to this day you can remember
i just those words that were undgrl:l.ned, cannot you?
S . Captain Safford: I can remember them because we had
! " = the words preserved in the written record in Circula.r 2353.
E '- = T cannot remember the words in my mind. I can only leave
24

them to thi
o 8 Which had been preserved in the written record,
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

and I knew it was this form, and not the other form.
Mr.Richardson: And when you looked at 2353, right

in front of your nose was ths® phrase that all three of

these phrases had also to appear at the end of the broad-

cast message, but that did not seem to impress you as
being important.

Have you any reaction on that now? Does your mind
give any reaction on that now?

Captain Safford: I have no doubt that I checked

through the rest of the message, and found everything in

due form and technically correct, according to 2353, but

I cannot swear from memory to it at this late date.

Mr. Richardson: Well, at the present time, Captain,
regardless of what you had no doubt of, you have no recol-
lection, under oath, that you saw anything in that message

except the three phrases underlined by Kramer in the mes-

sage he handed you?

Captain Safford: That is correct. Those are the things

that remsin in my memory through all this period of time.

Mr. Richardson: Now do you have any reqollection,

Captain that these sentences, these groups of words were

repeated twice in the message? That would be ilmportant,

wvould it not?

Captaln Sefford: It is my impression they were, out
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- S——— E - I = b e L e e & -

-

llIIlIlllllllllllllllllllllllllllIlIlllllllllllll-l-ql-llIlllllllllllllllllll' iy

SR S e e




0688
Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

hl3 ‘ I am not certain.
. 3 9 Mr. Richardson: Was this message, Captain, a short
- vave news broadcast?
. Captain Safford: It was a shortwave news broadcast.
i Myr. Richardson: How do you know?
. Captain Safford: DBecause the frequency was recorded
y on the message, and we could not hear the longwave or low
’ power stuff anyhow, the only thing we could hear in
. Washington from Tokyo was on shortwave.
g . Mr. Richardson: How did you know it was news 1f you
. . é " could not read Japanese?
; g Captain Safford: I counted on Kramer to do that.
% ” Mr. Richardson: Well, you could have counted on Kramer
f o to do it, but now you have not testified that you asked
" him anything about 1it.
" Captain Safford: Kramer told me when he gave me the
g paper, he said, "This is 1t." There is no question I1n
. my mind o the mind of anybody else what he meant by it.
" Mr. Richardson: Now, let us just temporarily, because
i I am going to question you about it again, Captain, probe
. - that question.
o You know, do you not, Captain, now that Kramer has
5 three times in his sworn testimony heretofore, denied that
a he saw anything in this message with reference to Japanese
25




W¥itness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson
hl4 ' words relating to the United States, and says that the
e only thing there was in the message he saw had referance
. to Russia., You know that, don't you?
! Captain Safford: I did not know that.
S Mr. Richardson: He told you that, didn't he?
2 Ceptain Safford: Kramer never told me anything
’ about Russia.
y Mr. Richardson: Did not he tell you that he was
; ’ completely uncertain as to what the Japanese words were in
gl ‘ this message?
i — Captain Safford: I think that Kramer had been pretty
'i v well befuddled by the middle of 1945.
{ % - Mp. Richardson: Had been prétty wvell what?
E s Captain Safford: Well, befuddled.
B - Mr. Richardson: Well, did the befuddling, Captain
e apply only to Kramer? Were you befuddled at a1l in 19457
& Captain Safford: In 1945 there was a determined effort
& mede to have me reverse my testimony before previous in-
E? vestigations and to say I had never seen the vinds message.
- Mr. Richardson: All right.
i Now, explain to the committee in detall just wvho started
i to exercise influence on you to make you change your testi-
= mony. Give names and dates, and the full conversations.
24

Mr. Murphy: May I request, Mr. Chalrmen, that we also
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson
Senator Lucas
have him produce the original memorandum he made two
veeks ago?
Mr. Richardson: I did not hear that.

Mr. Murphy: I would like to roquost that we have
presented the written memorandum of two weeks ago. He
said he had a written memorandum of two weeks ago that he
Just got for the first time.

Mr. Keefe: He already identifled 1it.
Mr. Murphy: I would like to have that,'produood.

Mr. Richardson: Go ahead and read it in detail. Give

us now all of the evidence that you have to indicate that
anybody tried to get you to change your testimony in just
as much detail as you can, Captain.

Senator Lucas: Mr. Counsel, may I inquire when this
statement was prepared?

Mr. Richardson: Which statement?

Senator Lucas: What he 1s about to read.

Captain Safford: This statement was prepared on the
14th of July, 1945,

Senator Lucas: How did you happen to prepare that
statement at that time?

Captain Safford: There were certain things that occur-
red that struck me as quite unusual. I had never seen any-

thang like it in all my experience as a commissioned officer
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Senator Lucas
Questions by: Mr. Richardson

of the Navy, and I made notes on the spot, and combined

Witness Safford

it all into one memorandum while the events were still
fresh in my memory.

Senator Lucas: You did not have this previously?

Mr. Richardson: No, this is the first I have heard
of 1it.

The Vice Chairmen: Do you set out in that statement
what those certaln events were that impressed you?

Captain Safford: I have it here, I merely had 1t
with me to refresh my memory; I did not expect to produce
it as evidence. I am now asked to produce it, and I have
it here, 1f it 1s desired by the committee.

The Vice Chairman: Go ahead.

Captain Safford: I would Just as soon not go into this
here. .

Mr. Richardson: I think it would be well, if he read
his paper rather than testifying from it, simply in re-
freshing his recollection.

The Vice Chairman: Yes, Jjust read your paper completely
to the coomittee, please, sir.

Senator Ferguson: May I suggest, counsel, if théro
is anything that 1s not in this memorandum that he recalls,
that he give that also?

Mr. Richardson: Yes, I thought it was all oral, when
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hl7 l I askeq the question.
; Senator Ferguson: Yes.
: The Vice cha.:l.rna.n:. Read your paper completely, and
3 distinctly, so we may all hear it, and then when you have
: finished reading it, wvhy you may éupplement it by any
3 other statement you desire to make on this subject, in,
: response to the guestion counsel has asked you.
; Senator Ferguson: Might I suggest that he read it
i not so fast.
§ : Ca.pta.in'Sa.ffordz All right.
.
. E " Senator Ferguson: I have difficulty at times hearing
T
z Captain Safford: This paper is dated 14 July, 1945:
;' g A "MEMORANDUM OF CONVERSATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH ADMIRAL
" " Il EEWITI'S INVESTIGATION OF THE FEARL HARBOR DISASTER.®
: T Mr. Richardson: This was after you had testified
= before Admiral Hewitt?
W Captain Safford: This was ﬁfter I had testifisl before
e Admiral Hewitt.
) = Mr. Richardson: All right, go ahead.
I ” Captain Safford: I believe -- I am no_t. certain on the
o dates.
23
Mr. Murphy: The Hewitt testimony was taken between
24
™ May 14, 1945 and July 12, 1945, and this memorandum 1is

-
P -
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

July 14, two days after Admiral Hewltt concluded taking

l testimony.

| Captain Safford (reading):
‘ "|. This memorandum is prepared, while events ars
! still fresh in my mind, for poqsible use in connection
! with future Investigations of the Pearl Harbor Disaster,
! or Court-martials in connection with Fearl Harbor. It

l

includes certein acts which strike me as irregular, oOr

s  On or sbout Friday, 11 May, 1945, I was called

l unusual, and probebly 1llegal.

to an unofficilal conference (or meeting) conducted by

| I,ieutenant Commander John Sonnett, U.S.N.R., in room 108348,
| Navy Building."
L

1

The Vice Chairman: Spell that wman’s name.

S-o-n-n-e~-t-t.

i Captain Safford:

i‘ | My. Richardson: Now, Captain, he had been connected

with the Hart hearing, had not he?

Captain Sefford: He had not.

Mr. Richardson: What hearing was he connected with?

Captain Safford: He was connected with the Hewltt

hearing.
Mr. Richardson: ‘I mean the Hewitt hearing. Whet wes

]| his function in the Hewitt hearing? Do you remember?

Ceptein Sefford: He wes & legal edviser to Admirel
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. Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Hewitt, and a speclal repre sentative of the Secretary
of the Navy.

Mr. Richardson: And took part in that 1nvestiggtian?

Ceptain Safford: And took part in thet investigatiocn.

Mr. Richardson: All right. Now go ahead.

Ceptain Safford (continuing reading):

"ye was in civillan clothes, as he has been on every
occasion on whican I have seen him. Sonnetd told me thatl
he had been assigned as a legal assistant to Admirsl Heﬁitt
in an investigation of the responsiblllty for the-Pearl
Harbor Disaster, thet he was also a special reprasentative
for Secretary Forgeatal in this investigation and that 2o

vas authorized to handle Top-Secret and Secret informstion

and documents. He showed me papers signed by Secretery

Forrestal and Fleet Admiral King verifying these state-

ments.

"At my request he let we reed the Ppecept which
directed Admiral Hewitt to conduct the investigetion. 1t
was wy understanding that Admirel Hewitt had notv yet'

returned to Washington and that Sonnetl was getting things

i lined up to expedite matters after the Admiralls arrivel.

"3, I answered many questions pertaining to my testi-

mony before previous investigations, and discussed dls-

orevancies bastween my testiwouy and the Testimeony of other
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

5 h20 witnesses."

o

Mr. Richardson: Let me stop you right there, Cupisin.

Does not it commence to dawn on you that this state-
ment of yours was made before you testified in the Hewlit

examingtlon?

but it was written up end tyred and dated afterwards.

Mr. Richardson: I see. But this conversation ihgt
you had wich Sonnett took place before you testified in
the Hewitt investigation?

Captain Safford: That is correct.

GWiA INYL W GUY AL

Mr. Richardson: All right.

l
|
i |
ﬁ .
‘z Captain Safford: Some of the notes were made before, 3
iI
|
ii
:‘
i
{
li Ceptein Sgfford (continuing reading) :
i

1 "Sonnett requested thet I give him, by the end of the

ﬁ 1 L e ) Be NI R

id

l
i next week, written wmemorande to be used &s & baais of
|
|

| study end examination (under oath) on the subjects listed
£y

i below. This was done and the» memoranda submitted as follows:
18 |

| ""Subject Date Submitted Remarks

"Winds Messaga’ 15 May 1945 Withdrawn on 18 May 1945 at

(6-pages) the suggestion of Lt.
Comdr. Sonanett.Origlnal
retained for possible
future uses.,”

1 Mr. Richsrdson: By the way, have you a copy of that

paper that you gave to Sonnett?

— e — e —— e T
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i Captein Safford: I believe I have.




. Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson
' Mr. Richardson: All right, go ahead.

Mr. Murphy: Wi1ll the Captain go a little more slowly?

Captain Safford: Yes.

Mr. Murphy: There was something saié before 15 May
1945, What was that?

Captaln Safford: “Six pages."

@ » -
e —

Mr. Murphy: All right.
Captalin Safford:
subject Date Submitted Remarks

Evaluation of messages 17 May 1945 Also 1lists the 6 car-

of 26 Nov. 1941 (6- riers described by Com

pages. ) 16 as ‘all known first
and second fleet car-
riers,’
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Eveluation of 'UTU?

broadcasts (8-pages) 19 May 1945 No action was taken be-
cause Jap invasion fleet
had been sighted by RAF
planes off Kota Bharu.
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Tatute Maru and the 21 May 1945 . Indicates that on 7 Dec.
Pregident Madison 1941 the CNO refused to
(1 page) . believe that the U.S.
would be involved in the

war that was imminent
in East Asila.
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"On. Sonnett's request, I prepared &nd furnished him

- =5 - - -

coples of certein U, S, Naval messages, the Station "H"
Chronology for 1-6 December, 1941, and Com 14 Daily CI

Summaries for 1 Nov.-6 Dec. 1041.

"4, It was apparent to me on my very- first meeting
with Lieutenent Commencer Sonnett that he was acting as
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Witness Safford
a 'counsel for the defense’ for the late Secretary Knox,
and Aamiral Stark rather than as thes legal assistant tco
the Investigating offlcer. His purpose seemed to be to
refute testimony (before earlier investigations) that wae
unfavorable to anyone in Washington, to beguile ‘hostile’
witnesses into changing their stories and to introduce an
element of doubt where he could not effect a reversal of
testimony. ABove all, he attempted to make me reverse my
testimony regarding the 'Winds Eiecuta' Méusaga and to make
me believe I was suffoering from hellucinations.

"5. I talked to Sonnett the second time on 13 May
1945, and the third time a day or two later. On these
latter occasions, like the flirst, Sonnett tried to persuade
me tha; there had been no ‘Winds Execute'! Message, that my
memofy hed bsen playing me tricks, that I had confused the
'False Winds Message’ with what I had been expecting. and
that I ought to change my testimony to permit reconciling
all previous discrepancies and thereby wind up the affair.
In some cases the ldea was stated outright, in some cases
i1t was ilmplied, and 1n other cases 1t was unexpressed butl
obviously the end in view."

Senator Lucas: The what?

Captain Safford: "The end in view.

" . - -
6. X distincily recell Lieutenent Coumencer John
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Witness Safford
Bonnatﬁ, U.S.N.R., making the following statements to me
during the course of the above-mentioned conferences:

"iYou are the only one who seems to have ever seen

the 'Winds Execute’ Message.

"iHow could the 'Winds Execute' be heard on the east
coast of the U. 8. and‘not at any of the places nearer
Japan??’

"'If is very doubtful that there ever was a Winds

Execute’ Message.

"1It is no reflection on your veracity to change your

testimony.

"11t is no reflection on your mentality to have your
wmemory play you tricks - after such a long period.’

Tilumerous witnesses that you have named have denied
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all knowledge of & 'Winds Lxecute! Message."

iy

You do not have to carry the torch for Admiral

Kinmel. '

7. I testified before Admiral Hewitt the first time
on or ebout 24 May 1945, before he went to Pearl Harbor.
I testifid before Admiral Hewitt & second time on 22 June,
1945, after his return from examining witnesaes at Pezrl
Harbor. Upon completion of my testimony'(in'yhich.the "Winds

Execute! Message had figured, I asked him, Voff-the=-record?
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Witness Safford
1f there was still any doubts in his mind ag to the ‘VWinds
Message' having been sent by Japan and disseminated in the
War and Navy Depaurtments. The Admiral looked startled,
and before he could reply Sonnett said:

"10f course, I am not conducting the case, and I do
not know what Admiral Hewitt has decided, but to me it is
very doubtful that the so-called 'Winds Execute' Message
wes ever sent.’

"Admiral Hewitt thought a minute or two more, and then
sald: |

"iYou are not entitled to my opinion, but I will
ansver your question. There is no evidence of a 'Winds
pxecute! Messsge beyond your unsupported testimony. I do
not doubt your sincerity, but I bellieve that you have con-
fused one of the other messages containing the name of a
wind with the message you were expecting to receive.!"

Maybe I ought to go on with paragraph 9.

"8. For my part, I do not doubt Admiral Hewitt's
intégrity" -

The Vice Chairman: Just a minute. You are roading‘
everything that is on that paper?

Captain Safford: I am reading everything that i1s on

this paper.

The Vice Chairmen: 211 right. Go ahead.
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Witness Safford
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Captain Safford: "For my part, I do not doubt

Admiral Hewitt 's integrity, but I do believe that Sonnett

- A e

has succeeded in pulling the wool over his eyes.

gl

"g, I also believe that Sonnett employed similar

-
T e e i

tactics on other witnesses whose testimony had favored
Admiral Kimmel, particularly Rochefort and Kramer.
“10. Copies of the memorandum described in paragraph

3 are appended hereto. Also appended is a memorandum to

o ——— e e e il W . T g
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Admiral Hewitt dated 22 June, 1945, clerifying my testimony

-

regerding the ‘Winds Execute' Message and indicating that Sonnett

hed attempted to trick me into stating the opposlte of 1

~
| \

what I intended to say."

Signed, "L. F. Safford,
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Captain, Us 8. Ne'
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My. Murphy: There are more pages?

The Vice Chairman: Does that complete your statemenat?

-

Captain Safford: Thaet completes my statement. The

-

other peges appended are coples of the memoranda which were

e =

referred to in paragraph 2.
The Vice Chairman: All right, proceed and read them,

read every word of those papers sttached to your statement.
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Captain Safford:
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"MEMORANDUM FOR LIEGT,CCHWANDER JOHN F, SONNELT, U,S.N.R."
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Witness Safford

Captain Safford: "For my part, I do not doubt
Admiral Hewitt 's integrity, but I do believe that 3Sonnett

has succeeded in pulling the wool over his eyes.

"g, I also believe that Sonnett employed similar

tactics on other witnesses whose testimony had favored

\

Admiral Kimmel, particularly Rochefort and Kramer.
"10., Copies of the memorandum described in paragraph

3 ave appended hereto. Also appended is a mezmorandum to y

Admiral Hewitt dated 22 June, 1945, clarifying iy testimony
regerding the *Winds Execute! Message and indlcating that Sonnett

hed attempted to trick me into stating the opposite of

.y‘
vhat I intended to say."
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Signed, "L. F. Safford,

G "HOL

Captein, U. S. N."

-y
e

My. Murphy: There arec more pages?
The Vice Cheirman: Does that complete your statemeat?
Captain Safford: That completes my statement. The

other peges appended are coples of the wemoranda which were

referred to in paragraph 2.

The Vice Chairman: All right, proceed and read them,

read every word of those papers attached to your statement.
Captain Safford:

"SEKCRET

"MEMORANDUM FOR LIEOT ,CCHMiANDER JOHN F, SONNETT, U,S.N.R."
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Witness Safford Questions by: The Vice Chairman

The Vice Chairman: Permit me to ask you, is that
your memorandum¢? ‘

Cuptain Safford: That is my memorandum.

The Vice Chairman: Prepared by you?

Captain Safford: Prepared by me.

The Vice Chairman: Go ahead and read 1t.

Captain Safford: "Subject: Winds Message.

"]1. To the best of my knowledge and believe, the fol-
lowing officers knew, in December, 1941, that the Winds
'Execute! message had been broadcast from Tokyo on (or about)
4 December, 1941 (and prior to 7 December 1941) although
some of them did not learn about it until after the attack
on Pearl Harbor:"

Then I have listed the name, present rank, station and
duty on 7 December, 1941, first for the Army, and second
for the Navy.

The Vice Chairman: Are those names there?

Captain Safford: The names are there, which I will
read, if you are interested.

The Vice Chairman: All right, go ahead,

Captain Safford (reading):
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Witness Safford

Station and Duty

Name Present Rank on T Decembex 131

George C. Marshall General of the Army Chief of Staff,U.S.Army
Leonard T. Gerow Lt.Gen. U.S.A. Director,War Plans Div.

Dawson Olmstead Maj.Gen.U.S.A. (Ret.) Chief 3ignal Officer

Sherman Miles Maj.Gen.U.S.A. Dirsctor of Military Intel-
ligence.
Clayton Bissell Maj.Gen.U.3.A. War Plans Division, (WDGS)

Otis K. Sadtler Col, U.3.A. Army Communicetions,
office of Chief Signal

Officer.

Rufus S. Bratton Brig.Gen.U.S.A. In charge, Far Eastern
Section, Milltary
Intelligence."

T believe I was mistaken, He was only & Colonel at

the time.

The Vice Chairman: That is the first time you heard
of him being a Brigadier General?

Captain Safford: I heard he had been promoted. That
wvas my mistake. Thaet 1s what 1t should be. (Resumes reading: )
"Rex W. Minckler Col.,U.S.A. Chief of Signal Intel-
1ligence,Service,0ffice
of Chief Signal Officer.
Harold Doud Col., U.S.A. In charge,Japanese

Section,SIS,0ffice of
Chief Signal Officer
Robert E.Schukraft Col.,U.S.A. In charge,Intercept
Sectien,SIS, Office of
Chief Signal Officer
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Witness Safford

Frank B. Rowlett

H.R.Stark
H.E.Ingersoll
R.K.Turner
T.3.Wilkinson
Leigh Noyes
J.R.Beardall
J.R.Redman
F.E.Beatty

L.F.Safford

A.H.McCollum

G.W.Welker

A .D.Kramer

1w R

Reserve),U.S.Army

Admiral U.S.Navy
Admiral,U.S.Navy
Vice Adm.,U.S.N.
Vice Adm.,U.S.N.
Rear Adm.,U.S.N.
Rear Adm.,U.S.N.
Rear Amd., U.S.N.
Rear Amd., U.S.N.

captl’ U-S-Nl
Capt., U.3.N.
Capt., U.S.N.

Capt., U.S.N.

Lt.Col.(Signal Corps

9703

Japanese Section,3I18

office of Chief Signal

Officer.

Chief of Naval Opera-
tions.

Asst.,Chief of Naval
Operations

Director, War Plans
Division

Director of Naval
Intelligencw

Director of Naval
Communications

Naval Alde to the
President

Asst.Director of Naval
Commmunications

Aide to the Secretary
of the Navy

Op-20-G. In charge,
security Section, Naval
Communications

0p-16-F2- In Oh&rgﬂ, F..I'
Eastern Sect.,Naval
Intelligence

Op-20-GX . In charge
Intercept and Direction
Finding Section

0p-20-0’z. In Ohﬂ.l‘ge,

Translation and Dissemin-

ation Section.(Actually
attached to Far Eastern

gection of Naval Intelll-

gence, )

|
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Principel Cryptanalyst
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Witness Safford

L.W.P&rh COMI'., UOSOHO OD-EO-M- In M”,
Cryptanalytical Section.

A .A Murray Lt.Comdr.,U.S5.N.R. Watch Officer in Op-
20-0!.

H.L.Bryant Chief Ship's Clerk, Confidential Yoeman
- UOS:N- 111 0p-20-02-
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Questions by: Senator lucas
Mr. Richardson

Senator Lucas: May I ask one question? Are those

Witness Safford

names you read those who are presumed to have seen the
winds message?

Captain Safford: Seen or have been told about 1it;
knew about it at the time. Whether they have forgotten 11:-
since I have no idea.

Sena.ﬁor Lucas: I see.

Mr. Richardson: You might indicate at this point
which ones of these names according to your information
actually saw this message that you say was the winds execute.

Senator Ferguson: Those that were in position to see
1t or that did see it.

Mr. Richardson: That he knows saw 1it.

Captain, I don't want the report, or anything, but I
vant your own knowledge as to which ones of these names saw
it.

Captain Safford: In this memorandum which I gave
Commander Sonnett I only told him which ones knew about the
vinds message either before December 7 or shortly after.

Mr. Richardson: Then you don't knov of your own
knowledge that any one of thohe persons so named ever actually
saw the message?

Mr. Keefe; Except Kramer, who he has testified gave

nim the message.




Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Mr. Richardson: Wait just a minmute --

Captain Safford: So far as direct evidence is concerned
1 have no knowledge that any of those people saw it. These
are turned in as a 1list of prospective witnesses on the
winda code.

Mr. Richardson: You do know that Kramer saw 1t?

Captain Safford: Yes, sir.

Mr. Richardson: That is the only one.

Captain Safford: And I saw 1t.

Mr. Richardson: 7Yes.

Captain Safford: And I sent it to Admiral Noyes and
the courier who took it up reported, "Message delivered" .

Mr. Richardson: Now, have you anything further?
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Captain Safford: I have a great deal mara.

The Vice Chairman: Go right ahead from where you lef't
off .

Senator Ferguson: Will counsel inquire as to whether
these exhibits he 1s now roa.diné were turned over to Commander
Sonnett?

Captain Safford: These were all turned over on the
days indicated. He talked to me about these things and asked
me to write a complete statement to help him and Admiral

Hewitt in the subsequent investigation conducted. They were

not evidence. These were leads. Off the record and
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Witness Safford Questions by: Senator Lucas
Mr. Richardson

nrivate examinat :l.on'a .

Mr. Richardson: But all given to Sonnett?

Ceptain Safford: Yes, sir, to help him and help
Admiral Hewitt.

Senator Ferguson: That is what I wanted.

Senator ILucas: Do I understand that just Kramer and
yourself saw this message?

Mr. Richardson: That is of his own knowledge.

Captain Safford: That I know from my own knowledge.

Senator Lucas: McCollum didn't see the message?

Captain Safford: I have no direct knowledge that
McCollum ever saw 1t.

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairman, in the statement he gives
us he said they all had them delivered to them. He is
only reading now the memorandum.

Captain Safford: Yes; on this 1list were people who
imew about it, not people who necessarily had copies.

The Vice Chairmen: Go ahead, Captain, read from the
point you left off.

Captain Safford: "2. An element of confusion was
saused by the Tokyo weather forecast or "false" winds
message intercepted by the FCC at 2200 GCT, 4 December 1041,

and phones to Lieutenant Commander Brotherhood during the

svening of 4 December 1941. It is believed that certain
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Witness Sa.rrord

officers attached to 0p-20-G --"

The Vice Chairman: Not quite so fast.

Captain Safford: (Continuing) --"in December 1941
had in mind the "false" winds message when they informed
me that they knew of the "winds message”. Their names are
as follows: -

Lieutenant Commander G. W. Linn, U.S.N.R."

Senator Lucas: Pull the miorophone in front of you,
please.

Captain Safford:

"Iieutenant Commander F. M. Brotherhood, U.S.N.R.

ILieutenant Cormander A. V. Pering, U.S.N.R.

Lieutenant F. L. Freeman, U.S.N.

Ensign Wilmer Fox, U.S.N.

"The FCC interception of another winds execute message
between 0002 and 0035 (GCT), 8 December 1941, prove's that
the Japanese Government did use this system for broadcasting
war wvarnings.

"3, There never has been any doubt in my mind that
the winds execute message was broadcast from Tokyo two or
three days prior to the attack on Pearl Harbor and forwarded
o the Navy Department. The points in doubt, which I sought
to clarify by sighting the incoming Japanese message (or its

translation), were:
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Witness Safford

"(a) Exact date /TI.e. December 4 (Thursday) or

. ' : December 5 (Friday) 1941/. _
"(b) Exact wording of the original Japanese broadcast.
: "(c) Station call, time and frequency of the Japanese
v Radio Station which broadcast it. (This would reconcile
v 'skip! phenomena.)
' "(d) Whether received in voice or Morse code.
: "(e) Station which intercepted the message.
; "4, After receiving the winds 'oxeout.'e'ﬂ; ma‘uago I
1 % :(: discussed with Lieutenant Commander Welker (Op-20-GX) the
,E. 2 ndvisability of discontinuing the special intercept watches
E 2 being maintained to pick up the winds l'execute?!. However,
g only two days previously we had translated Tokyo Circular
'3 7 #2409 (JD #06985) dated 27 NWovember 1941 - setting up a system
rn for sending out 'Hidden Word Messages' (INGO DENPO) in
a event of strained relatlons. Although we expected these
% would come over regular commercial circuits (as proved the
5 case on the morning of 7 December 1941), we could not be
i sure, and it seemed advisable to continue the existing
> set-up which covered all possibilities (even though it
. 7 meant the operators continuing their doubled-up watches),
o and required no further orders and no possibility of mis-
: = understanding and confusion. It is my impression that
24

Welker discussed the matter with Captain Schukraft, and
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Muphy

Mr. Richardson
the Army made a similar decision. I have not discussed

ihis with Velker since September 1042 and I have no idea y
how well he remembers this incident.

"5. Somebody must have notified the War Department
cbout the winds 'execute' message because Colonel Bratton
telephoned to Admiral Noyes and requested a copy of the
original Japanese broadcast so that he could verify the
sranslation. (This was customary in highly important
intercepts). Admiral Noyes got quite indignant and told
olonel Bratton that the Navy's translation was correct and
that the War Department would not be furnished a copy of
the original message."

Mr. Murphy: May I ask if you are now speaking of the
actual intercept which you claim you saw right there?

Captain Safford: Speaking of what account I could
get of the winds message from people in the War Department,
and this was not testimony, this was furnished as a lead.

Mr. Richardson: But it referred to your winds execute
message?

Captain Safford: Yes, sir.
Mr. Murphy: All right.
Captain Safford: "The foregoing incident, 1f verified

by Colonel Bratton, will prove that the winds Texecute!

got as far as Rear Admiral Noyes and G-2.




Witness Safford

"6. There is one possible source of information on
the winds message which has not been checked, namely - the
Austrelien C.I. Organization. The Australlians had a small
C.I. Organization and in December 1941 they were intercept-
ing Japanese diplomatic radio traffic and reading messages
in the J-19 system. (The Dutch in Java were also reading
J-19, as well as the British in Singapore and London and
the U.3. Army and Navy in Corregidor and Washington.) The
Auat.ralian.c.I. Unit had lisison with the Singapore C.I.

10

Unit, including exchange of translations and keys, exceptl
11

for the purple and red machines. The winds 'set-up' message
12

13

dated 19 November 1941) were in J-19. Singapore sent
14

translations to Corregidor (CinCAF 281430 (COPEK) to OpNav )
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15

snd undoubtedly sent these same translatlons to Australia.
16

The Australiens may have intercepted the winds iexecute?
17

message on 4 December 1941. 1If so, this was the basis
18

of Senator Ferguson's ‘Australian War Warning' which
19 .

received much publicity in December 1943 Ao
20

Mr. Murﬁhy: Read thaﬁ again, please.
21

Captain Safford: "The Australians may have intercepted
22

the winds texecute' message on 4 December 1941."
23

Mr. Murphy: Yes.
24

X Captain Safford: "If so, this was the basis of Senator
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Witness Safford

Ferguson's 'Australian War Warning! which received much
publicity in December 1943."
Maybe it was 1944,
Mr. Murphy: Senator Ferguson's Austrelian war warning?
Captain Safford: Yes, sir.
Mr. Keefe: You heard it the first time. |
Captain Safford: "This hypothesis could be easily

 prover or disproved."

And remember this is written in July 1945.

Senator Ferguson: Might I inquire whether or not that
vas to Australian Minister Dixon?

Captain Safford: That is what I vas referring to, yes.

Mr. Richardson: Go ahead.

Captain Safford: I think I have a mépapor clipping
of it. That is what I was referring to.

"This hypothesis could be easlly proved or disproved.
The following secret message to the Fleet Radlio Unit,
Melbourne, is suggested:" |

And I have a proposed message from the Secretary of
the Navy to that Unit in which they were being asked to
contact the Australians and see if the Australians would
tell them yes or no. I will quote the message if desired.

Mr. Richardson: Quote it.

Captain Safford: (Read ing)
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Witness Safford

"FROM: SICRETARY OF THE NAVY

"TrOs FLEET RADIO UNIT MELBOURNE

"REFERRING CINCAF TWENTYEIGHT FOURTEEN THIRTY NOVEMBER
NINETEEN FORTYONE AND TOKYO CIRCULARS TWENTYTHREE FIFTYTHREE
AND TWENTYTHREE FIFTYFOUR DATED NINETEEN NOVEMBER SAME YEAR
IN JIG NINETEEN DID AUSTRALIANS INTERCEPT OR KNOW OF SUCH
A WARNING BROADCAST FROM TOKYO ON OR ABOUT FOUR DECEMBER
NINETEEN FORTYONE X IF AFFIRMATIVE FORWARD BY AIRMAIL
CERTIFIED TRANSCRIPT OF BROADCAST AS RECEIVED WITH NOTATION
AS TO DATE X TIME X FREQUENCY X VOICE OR MORSE X CALL
LETTERS OF TRANSMITTING STATION X LOCATION OF INTERCEPTING
STATION AND OTHER RELEVANT DATA"

"7. Lieutenant Colonel Rowlett heard of the winds
'execute! by office gossip a day or two before the Japanese
attack on Pearl Harbor. A few days after the attack Colonel
Sadtler came to him and said, I would like to see the winds
message,' or wvords to that effect. Rowlett referred him
to Major Doud, in charge of the section, who in turn re-
ferred him to Colonel Minckler, the Chief of SIS. The rest
of the story belongs to the Army Investigation rather than
“he Navy Investigation except for the fact that it furnishes
further proof of the authenticity of the winds ‘execute!

nessage and that some written record of it did exist in the

War Department in December 1941.
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Witness Safford

"8. A complete exposition of radio wave propagation
would be very lengthy and out of place. It is sufficient
to say that the radio frequencies used between Japan and
the United States were quite erratic in performance, and
that long distance radio communications in an East-West
direction are more difficult and less reliable than those
in & North-South direction. A few pertinent examples can
e given, namely:

"(a) The long fourteen (14) part Tokyo Serial #902
" (JD-1 #7143) was intercepted solid at Bainbridge Island,
i Washington. Part Two (of Tokyo Serial #902) and Tokyo

5 Serial #9004 (JD-1 #7144) were also copied at Cheltenham,
> Maryland, and forwarded to the Navy Department and used
> for the actual decryption. (This is verified in the GY

2 G "NOLONIHSYM "INVd ¥ QuYM

16
L.og for 6 December 1941.) The rest of Tokyo Serial #902

was 'uncopyable! at Cheltenham."”
" I would like to add after the m;mrandm, outside the
< memorandum, that that statement was possibly incorrect,
5 but it was my recollection at the time.
. "(b) Part Two of the very important three-part Tokyo
* to Berlin #985 (JD-1 #6943) was missed but the first and
o third parts were copied solid.”
= I would like to add, this is not in the memorandum,
24

that both Corregldor and England missed, and we only have
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the first and third parts here. We received a copy from
‘ondon as vell as & copy from Corregidor.

"(¢c) We £inally had to call on Corregidor to cover
the Berlin-Tokyo circuits as the combined efforts of inter-
cept stations in the East Coast, West Coast, Hawall and
Fngland could not provide better than about fifty (50)
percent coverage. During the period 1 December - T December
1941, the Navy Department received seventy (70) Japanese
diplomatic intercepts from Corregidor as c ompared v:lt.lh
ssventy-three (73) from Bainbridge Island, twenty (20) for
a1l other U.S. Navy Stations, and ninety-three (93) for all
7.S. Army stations. The Japanese were trying to reach Rio
and Buenos Aires as well as San Francisco, Mexlco Clty,
and Washington. (See distribution of Tokyo Serial #2354).
Tt 18 not at all surprising that the frequency used to reach
»ashington, Rio, and Buenos Aires skipped over the West
Coast and Hawaeii. There is a possibility that this frequency
@ns heard in Australias even though it skipped over Manilla,
Singapore and Java,"

T would like to add also, off the memorandum, that
this 1is written many months ago, when I did not have informa-

tion which I now have.
"9. There is one final place where written confirmation

of the winds 'execute! message may exist - the Record of




D a "NOLDNIMEYM "INYd ¥ THVYM

10

11

14

17

19

20

21

23

4
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Proceedings of the Roberts Commission. I cannot belleve
that they could cover up so completely that some mention
of the winds ‘execute'! did not slip into the rac;ord. First
they said I didn't know what was golng on around me; now
they claim I am suffering from hallucinations. Under the
circumstances it is only fair that I be permitted to search
through the record for such evidence in order to prove my
sanity, as well as my intelligence and my veraclty.

"10. In conclusion the following quotation from my
sscret memorandum to.Colonel Vest, dated 2 October 1944,
1s submitted for consideration: --"

Mr. Richardson: Just one moment, Captain. Was
there a memorandum that you gave to Colonel West?

Captain Safford; There was a memorandum.

Mr. Richardson: Have you & copy of that memorandum?

Ceptain Safford: I believe I can find a copy.

Mr. Richardson: Will you produce it so that we may
see it, if you can? You don't need to do it now.

Captain Safford: I will later.

" vhe reason for my stressing the "winds message"
so much in my testimony (in all three cases) 1s because
ve could afford to talk about 1t, even print it in the

n'ewspa.per, without detriment to the war effort. Even the

Du‘l':ch ¥new of the code and the FCC listened for the message.
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

We had the same information - at the same time - from

more secret but less dramatic sources. Also the "winds
sst-up” was the nearest thing to a warning CINCPAC ever
got. If the "winds execute" had been heard at Pearl
Flarbor, the fleet would not have been surprised. And
necause CINCPAC was given no information that the "winds
execute" had been sent, everybody at Pearl Harbor believed
it had not been sent and that the Japs were still making
e their minds as to the next step.t"

Mr. Murphy: There is still more?

Captain Safford: That is the end of that memorandum
on the winds message, which is official and before the
investigation given to Mr. Sonnett to help him and Admiral
Fewitt get leads for their investigation.

The Vice Chairman: What else do you have?

Mr.Richardson: Have you finished with that statement?

Captain Safford: Yes.

Mr. Richardson: Have you some other memorandums?

Captain Safford: The other memorandums do not have
& bearing on the winds message.

Mr. Richardson: Iet me ask you this: You prefaced
this reading with a statement that efforts hed been made
o silence you and influence you. Have you any other record

of any kind, menner of description, that shows or tends to
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show or relates to any pressure or influence exerted upon

you or towards you to
give no testimony?

Captain Safford:

get you to change your testimony or

This has been the only time and 1t

was before the investigation. Not during the investigation.

T vant to make that very distinct.

Mr. Richardson:
you have read?
Captain Safford:

Then you have no more to add to wvhat

That is correct.

Now, after you wrote that and gave

that to Somnett you were examined before Admiral Hewitt?

Captain Safford:

Mr. Richardson:

T was examined before Admiral Hewitt. .

And you were given an opportunity to

|
(5

tostify fully and completely on every subject that you waritﬂd-tt’?:

Captain Safford:
Mr. Richardsons

Captain Safford:

That is correct .
And you were sworn on that testimony?

I was sworn on that testimony.

Mr.Richardson: And after the testimony was taken and

transcribed you read it and signed it, did you not?

Captain Safford:

T do not believe that I ever read it

or was given the opportunity to verify it.

Mr. Richardson:

Captain Safford:

Have you ever read it since?

T have read it since.
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr, Richardson

Mr. Richardson: It 1s ocorreot, is it not, Captain?

Captain Safford: It 1s ocorreot with af ew minor errors
in typing where they left out some words.

Mr. Richardson: Oh, I see. But generally speaking --

Captain Safford: General speaking it 1s ocorreot.

Mr, Richardson: (Continuing) -- it was a correoct report?

Captain Safford: That 1s right.

Mr.  Rychardson: Now, Captain -=-

Mr, Keefe: May we understand what these other items are
that are attached to this so-ocalled exhibit that he has there?
He says 1t does not have reference to the winds oode but 1t

may have quite a bearing on this case. They are part of the

same exhiblt,
The Vice Chairman: Captain, tell us --

Captain Safford: Cpould I explain them?

| The Vice Chairman: Tell us as plainly and as comnletely

as you ocan whaf the other papers are thut you have in your

thand in addition to what you have read to the cecmmittee?
Captain Safford: I belleve there were two oconfliocting
Intelligence reports, one sent on the 26th of November 1941,
one was sent from the l4th Distriot at Pearl Harbor and the
other from the leth.Dietriot‘at Manila, this oconcerning the

question or the possibility of Japanese ocarriers in the Man-

dated Islands. They did not agree.
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Witness Safford Questions xby: Mr, Richardson

Thls 18 a long dissertation on that giving my impres-
sion or evaluaticn of 1t for thelr benefit, I was also asked
to explain whut the Commandant 16th Distriot meant when he
said, " A1l known first and second fleet carriers," That is
the number and their 1ildentity.

The Vice Chairman: That is the scntents of the seocond
memorandum after the pcint where you stopped reading?

Captain Safford: That is correct.

The Vice Chairman: Then tell us what the next is. Each
additional paper that you have in your hand, tell us what
it 18,

Mr., Murphy: May we find out how many pages there are
on the carriers?

Captain Safford: Six pages.

Mr. Murphy: You say there are only 8ix between what you
read and what you have there in your hand, you mean there are
only six pages there?

Captain Safford: That 1s ocorrect. It is that one
(indicating.)

Mr. Murphy:, Oh, I 860,

Captain Safford: It was the one 1 just read.

Mr. Murphy: All right, Captaln, exouse me,

Captain Safford: On the 5th of December 194] -

The Vlice Chalrman: Well, now, what 38 this, - a memo-
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Questions by: Mr, Richardeon

Captain Safford: This 16 the evaluation of the "UTU"

The Vice Chairman: This is a memorandum from you?

Captain Safford: It i1s a memorandum of eight pages from

me to Mr.

Sonnett,.

The Vioe Chairman: From you to whom, please?

Captain Safford: To Lieutenant Commander Sonnett.

The Vice Chairman: All right, Give us an i1dea of what

is in 1t.

Captain Safford: Dated the 18th of May 1941 and 1t 1s

'

F Mr. Murphy:

Mr, Murphy: May I Jjust inquire, Mr. Chairman? The 81X
| peges on the ocarriers was also given to Sonnett?

Captain Safford: That was also. glven to him.

All right.

Mr. Bichardson: Go ahead.
The Vice Chairman: Tell us what theseeight pages are
thht you have before you pow?

Captain Safferd: On the 5th of December 1941 the Com-

mandant 14th Naval District reported to the Commandant 16th

District and Cnhlef of* Naval Operations by a messagze 1dentifled

a8 0522803

"UTU's,

are heing sent by HA FU 6 (Tokyo Radio)

S T
4
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Witness Safford Questicns by: Mr. Richardson

on 32 kilooyoles instead of 39 kos as before,"
and there had been a lot of disousasion. I explained 1t all
to Mr. Scnnett and then he asked me to1é1vo him a cocmplete
writeup, as muohtas T could tell him abrut 1t, whish I 414,
The Vice Chairman: And what does this relate to now?
Captain Safford: Tokyo normally broadcast messages to
the fleet on 39 kilooycles. ' On the 5th of December 1941 they
gsuddenly diacontinued'thoir 390 kilooyoles and opened up on 326

The Vioe Chairman: And that 18 what this eight page

memorandum ia8?

Captain Safford: Thils is all about what signif icance

| that might have had as a war warning or as regards Japanese

intentions of a naval wars

The Vice Chairman: All right.

Mr. Murphy: Now, Mr. Chalrman, I think that 1t 1s 1lm-
portant that we go into that for the reason that the Captain
in his statement aaid that the codes were changed on De-
cember 4th.

Captain Safford: That 18 correct.

Mr. Murphy: He now says thatl there was a change on
December Sth.

Cap-aln Safford: In the broadcasting frequency.

Mr. Murphy: All right, and the Naval narrative saye--

Mr., Keefe: Mr, Cha:lrman, that 18 not a correct state-




2856

2 ‘G ‘NOADNIHBYM "INYd ¥ AQuMYM

10

il

13

13

i4

135

10

17

18

24

23

a1t
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ment of the witness, that he testifled to a change in code.
genator Lucas: Mr, Chalrman, I move that we prooceed in

order,

Mr. Murphy: I am taking 1t from the statement of the e

| witness. 9o far as I know the witness 18 now referring %o

December 5th,

Captain Safford: That is ocorrect,

ur; Murphy: In his statement he refers to December 4th.
Captain Safford: That is correoct,
Mr. Murphy: And the Naval narrative refers to December

1 on the chanxe of signals. I think we ought to have 1%t

| shown.

The Vice Chairman: Do you request that this elght page

memorandum be readl

| The Vice Chairman: W4qthout objection it will be 80

‘ Mr. Murphy: I request that 1t be examined over the noon

hour by counsel to see whether or not 1t 18 of help to the s

committee. !

Ly

ordered, Now, what 18 the next, Captain?

Captain Safford: The final mpmoranﬂum'waa a one page
memorandum from myself to Commander Jonnett d:ted 21 May 1945
concerning the TATUTA MARU and the American passen<er shilp

President Madison.

The oircumstanoces of that were there had been a lot of ,
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Witnesa Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

I believe newspaper talk, possibly something elsewhere, that
the Japanese had sent the TATUTA MARU over as a kind ﬁf a
8pY » q;deooy. and that we had been taken in with it and 1
just brought out that they had arranged it long in advanoe,
they had clearance from the State Department, that everything
was in proper order and that no'algnirloanoo could have at-
tached to this whatever, to this trip of the TATUTA MARU,
go far as 1 oould see.

The Vice Chairman: Now, does that complete elther a

reading or a desoription of all the papers that you have there

before you?

Captain Safford: Thoee were all that were ref erenced
in this memorandum. I had some .additional papers clipped
together for convenience, so that they would not 39t dls-
placed. I will hand them in if you oare to have me To.

The Vice Chairman: ‘hat 1s that now?

Captain Safford: I had some additional papers ollpped
to this other bunch f or convenlence so they would not et
displaced.

Mr. Richardson: Where are those papers that were oclip-

ped? What were they?

Captaln Safford: I have a memorandum addressed to Ad-

miral Hewitt dated 22 June 1945 correcting some of my pre-

| vious testimony before him, where I had slipped and sald
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Questions by: Mr. Richardson

things whioch were not quite correct and I was able to verify
1t on the spot and turn it in so that my tesatimony would be

OQPPQOthn

TYhe Vice Chairman: Well, I think you had better read

! that memorandum. It was addressed to Admiral Hewltt?

Captain S afford: It ways addressed to Admiral Hewitt.
The Vice Chairman: About your testimony?
Captain Safford: Apout my testimony. |
The Vice Chairman: All right, read 1f, ploaao;-n1r;
Captain Safford: (Readlng)
"SECRET
22 June 1945

"MEMORANDUM FOR ADMIRAL HEWITT

"Subjt Pearl Harbor Investigation.

"Ref: (a) My testimony given this date.

"1. I now recall that Lieut. Commander Brother-
hood told me that he did not receive a written copy of
the ‘False' Winds Message from the F.C.C., but margly
received the information by telephone. The only writ-
ten versicn of the 'Falaof Winds Message we ever had
prior to 1944 was a memorandum of the phone call 1n
Brotherhcod's handwriting. Only one significant word

(North) appeared and it was in English. It was this

memorandum that Kramer threw in the ‘burn bag' after

i - - - F r --.
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telling Brotherhood that this was not what we were looke
ing for.

"2, The Winds 'Execute’ Healago whioch passed
through my hands on the morning of 4 December 194l was a
teletype copy (typed on yellow teletype paper} of the
entire Japanese broadcast about 200‘or 000 wordé long,
Thfoe gignificant words (Kita, Higashl, and Nishi) gp=-
peared and they were 1n Japanese. Kramer's transla-
tion appeared in pencil, or ocolored orayon, at the bot-
tom of the sheet. There was very little chance of ocon=
fuslon,

"3. I would llke tomake one correotion in the tes-
timony I gave toduay:

WiMpr, Phillip Cate, Japanese translator, employed .

by the Navy Department is still alive, It was his

brother, employed a8 a Japanese translator by the

War Department, who died a few weeks after the at-’

tack on Pearl Harbor,'

Respectfully,
L. F, Safford,
Captain, U,8., Navy."
The Vice Chairman: All right., What ﬁlae is there?

Mr. Richardson: What is the date of that memo?

Captain Safford: That 1s the 22end of June 19845,
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Mr. Richardson: And that was to Sonnett?

Captain Safford: No, that was to Admiral Hqﬁitt.

Mr. Bichardson: Oh, yes, I see.

Captain Safford: "I‘hat was referring to --

Mr. Richardson: 22nd of what?

Captain Safford: June. He wlll have that with hls pa-
pers. | B

Mr. Richardson: All right.

The Vice Chairman: 22nd of June 19457

Captain Safford: Yes. In going over it afterwards I
reallsed that posaibly my answers had not been glear or Qore
reot in one case, where I had him alive, Cate, and I was
8imply trying to make minor corrections in the testimony I had
2iven,

The Vice Chairman: I think we understand your reasons
for the memorandum. Now, what i1s the next?

Captalin Safford: The other, the flnal one 1is a memo-
randum of a conversation with Mr, Walter Foote at the State
Department on Wed neseday, May 30, 1945 and I have a note,

"Not given to Admiral Hewitt or Lieutenant Sonnett", but I
did discuss 1t with them and I gave a very, very brief sum-
mary of thls memorandum, which I belleve 18 ocontained in the

record of the Hewitt investigation.

Mr. Walter Foote was the American Consul General at
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Batavia who sent one of the winds code messages and he was in

touch with the situation,
When he came back to the United States I talked with him

to see 1f he cculd recall any further information on the sub-
jeot. Mr, Foote said that he wae positive that the Dutch
4n Java had not received the execute on the winde messaze.
The Vice Chairman: And that is what 1s covered in that
statement?
Captain Safford: No, this is a part of 1%t; th‘at ie the
substance of 1lt.
The Vice Chairman: All right.
Captain Safford: And 1t was in the Hewltt report.
The Vice Chairman: That was a memorandum from you?
Captain Safford; | That was a memorandum of me tr myself

just so I would not forget what Mr. Foote had said on the sub-

Ject.

The Vice Chairman: It was not given to Sonnett Or Hew-

1tt7

Captain Safford: It was taken in and they merely asked
me to take 1t and oom;.lense i1t in one paragraph in my tegtl-
mony, which I 4ld,

The Vice Chairman: All right. What else ocan you think

of 7

Captain S afford: The other papers here are merely ocop=-
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ies of the various ciroculars and forms of the winds ocode to
refresh my memory.

The Vice Chairman: “hat do you mean by "ocirculars and

| coples" ?

Captain Safford: Tokyo cirocular 2363, 2354,

Hr. Richardson: Just coples of those exhibits?

Captain Safford: Coples of those exhiblts.

The Vice Chairman: All right, Apything else?

Captain Safford: That 18 all,

The Vice Chalrman: That 1s all, all right. Please go
on now., Please hand that to counsel so they may examine the
part they were requested to examlne.
| Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairman, I think this is important and
I ask that all of the papers from which the witﬁosa read be
;mado an exhibit and that we have an exaoct copy of those pa-

pers.

The Vice Chairmen: Well, of course, all that he read

has gone in the transcoript of the reocord.

Mr., Murphy: All that he read and quoted from hevre 1is in
the reocord.

The Vigce Chairman: Now, ocounsel has boﬁﬁ requested to
examine the other parts that he 4did not read and when he re-

ports to us on that we will be prepared to pass on that cues-

tion, I imagine,
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Sichardson

Mr. Murphy: I am Just belng thorough. I think counsesl
ought to examine what was read in conneotion with what we
aoctually heard here and see if we have all of the papers in
the record that are in the group.

Mr, Riohardson: I do not care, Mr, Chairman, to raise
any questlon that the Captaln has read his records correotly.
I am perfeotly wllling to examine them but I do not ralse
any questlion but what he read them correctly and the record
has all of them in, unless there 1s a point to the Congress-
man's point that if these were in an exhlblit they would be
a little oaaier of examinatlidn by the ochmmittee pohsibly as a
unit than to follow it through the transoript.

The Vice Chairman: Well, probably it might be helpful to
have them as exhibits so that we might have them togeﬁher.
You can have 1t mimeographed for ys and furnish i1t to the com-
mittee. Without objection then that will be done.

Now, I would think that the reperter might want to re-
fer to the part that the Captain read because there were a
great many names and some Japanese words that most any re-
porter pight have difficulty in getting exactly right, so,
Captain?-: prill you please hand them over to counsel?

Captain Safford: Yes, sir.

The Vice Chairman: All right. Counsel will prooceed.

Senator Lucas: Mr. Chalrman, may I ask one qQuestion of
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Witness Safford Questions by: Ir.'ﬁiahardaon

the CapTain?

The Vice Chairman: Senator Lucas.

Senstor Lucas: Are'thoﬂe some of your personal papers,
part of your personal files that you are reading frem now?

Captain Safford: Thls 18 a part of my personal records
whioch I have made up in connection with these investigations
from the beglinning,

Senator Lucas: But do you care to have them at some time
returned to you?

Captalin Safford: I do not care to hagve them returned,
This is final, I hope.

The Vice Chairman: We hope so, too. All right, counsel
may proceed.

"~ Mr. Rlohardson: Our hopes synchronize on that last, Cap~-
talin,

Two things came  my attentlion as you read. You have no
doubt that the Yutch stations did not zet any e xecute of the
winde messagze.

Captain Safford: I have 1t from two sources now: an
officer who was there serving in liaison with the Dutoh and
Mr. Foote.

Mr. Rychardson: And they both sald they did not get 1t?

Captaln Safford: And they both sald they did not zet 1it.

Mr. Richardson: And that station did get the original

- — 3
¥ i -

e e ] "w—._--r-—-l—-—"m-l- -
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Witness Safford -

winds messaze?

Captain Safford: They knew about the original message,

| elther got 1t direct or possibly the British gent it to them

or we presumed they got 1t themselves.
Mr. Richardson: Now, a seocond thing that ocaught my at-

tention was that in one of these doocuments that you wrote for

| your own reference you said that the message that came 1ln had

the single words"HIGASHI NISHI' and something else, Noi. there

18 no doulxt in your mind, 18 there, that the execute message
you saw had the three groups of Japanene words that are ocon-
tained in 2353, with the exoception of the negative being
applied to Russlia?

Captain Safford: That is correct.

Mr. Rychardson: All right.

Captain Safford: I was trying to clarify the questicn of
misinterpretation of one of those compass direotlons whloch were
the governing thinzs,

The Vioe Chairman: If counsel permits an interruption,

lthe Captain states that in his written statement on page 12,

Captaln Safford: Y=s, sir,
Mr. Richardson: Now, Captaln, 1ln cirsular 2053 the
emergency which gave birth to the desire for the new oode,

winds code, 18 recited as"the danger of outting off of our

rdiploma tic relations and the cutting off of intennational
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richurdeon

communications", is it not?

Captain Safford: That 1s ocorrect.

Mr. Richardson: That would mean, would 1t not, that the
Japanese felt that thofo might come a time when because of
the status of their diplomatic relations and their interna-
tional communications that they would have to have some new
way of communicating and to furnish that new way they in-
vented this so-called "winds" code?

Captain Safford: This so~called "winds" code which was
to be used there by their broadocasts anid not by the commerp
clal telegraph companles.

Mr. Riohardson: Well, now, it 18 a fact, 18 1t not,
Captaln, £hat on the 4th of December all of the methods of
communiostiocn were open to the Japanese that had been open at
any time msinoce ]he 1st of Jamary 194),were they not?

Captain Safford: That 1s correct.

Mr. Richardson: So there wasn't any reason on the basls
of a loes of other methods of communiocaticn on December 4th to
use this winds code at all, was there?

Captain Safford: There was no reason that you ocould ac-
count for but we had been listening for 1t from the 28th of
November and we had made every effort to get 1t,

Mr. Riochardson: Now, keeping in mind your testimony

that the message which Lieutenant Kramer brought to you was in
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g Ul Japanese and in that messaze, in the middle of that message
3 were tﬁo phrases 1ln Japanene® whioch are used a8 1, 2 and S

« || and menzioned in ciroular 2353, keeping that in mind can you

5 point to any record then in existence of which either you or
8 l Kramer had any knowledge that interpreted or translated those
7 words ao meaning war?

8 Captain Safford: War was the meaning that we gave 1t

9 and war was what appeared in the translatlon, whether Justi-

10 fied or not,

§ Mr. Riohardson: All right. Exocept for the written

12 words that fLieutenant Kramer put on this dispatoch there 1s no

13 known writing emanating from Japan or any other source at

A

(s || that time that puts the interpretaticn on the language

S ‘0 "NOLDNINBYM "INYd % ONYM

13 "HIGASHI NO KAZEAME" as meaning war with the United States,

18 l ig theret

17 Captain Safford:; If that word had appeared alone 1%

13 | might have merely meant the breaking off of diplomatic rela-

19 tions, they might have meant nothing else,
20 Mr. Rjchardson: Now, Captailn, you pay attention to my

21 question, I want to find out whether you can put your filnger

22 on any existing authority that up to the time you sgw the
23 || message interpreted the phrase "HIGASHI NO KAZEAME" to mean

24 war with the United Statesa?

2s ‘ Now, let me carry it further. The messate from the
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2 || Commander of the AeiatloiEiiot does not so say, does 1t7

3 | Captain Safford: Not for "Higashi", and so forth.

4 | Mr. Richardson: And the message 2353 dres not 8o say,

5 does 1it?

6 Captaih Safford: NoO.

& Mr. Richardson: And you did not have the Foote or Thorp
8 messages avaiiablo at eighf o'olock on the morning of December

9 4th, d4id you?

s 10 Captain Safford: That 18 correcte.

? i1 Mr. Rechardson: So that so far as you know the defini-

.E 12 '| tion of those words that appeared on that message that morning

2 13 was the invention of Lieutenant Kramer?

; “ Captain Safford: I would not call 1t that.

: 15 Mr. Richardson: Vell, it was the act of Lieutenant Kram-
19 #, er.
- Captain Safford: I would say that all the higher author-

13 || Lty -~

19 J Mr. Richardson: Now, walt a minute, 1 am spesking about
20 this specifioc message when 1t was brought to you by Lleuten-

21 ‘d ant Kramer and I want to know what authority he had, 1f you

23 know, for translating the phrase "HIGASHI NO KAZEAME" as
23 meaning war with the United Statesf?

24 Captain Safford: I do not know now what authority he

2

i
i




2
>
x
o
»
=
>
c
r
3
$
z
1)
"
0
z
o
N

--'--_ -, . S A A — — —

Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

had.for using those words.

Mr,. Richardson: All right. And 1t was the firast time in
your whole life up to that point that you had ever seen the
word "War' used as a part of the definition of the words
"HIGASHI NO KAZEAME"?

Captaln Safford: 1In written form, correct.

Mr. Richardson: That 1is right. But when this yellow
sheet was brought to you with Lieutenant Kramer's notation on
it ‘he had written out, as I understund 1t, "War with the
United States" in English?

Captain Safford: In Epglish.

Mr. Richardson: Are you sure about that, Captain?

Cap taliln Safford: As sure as I oan be about anything
when I firast recorded it in writing at the end of two years.

Mr. Richardson: Well, now, was that point, Cantain, one

of the things whlch you sald was very hazy in your mind when

! you commenced to remembering in the fall of 1943 under your

testimony that I have read to you? Wus that one of the points
that was very hazy in your mind,as to Jjust what that inter-
pretation of Lieutenant Kramer read?

Captain Safford: I wanted verification of my memory
that he used the actual word "War." That was the only word

that I could remember.

Mr., Richardson: But you remembered the word "war"?
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3 Captain Safford: Rather than merely the werker form, |
3 || "Relatinas in danger.”
- Mr., Richardson: Well, the form "relations in 4 anzer"
5 would be a good deal weaker, wouldn't 1t, Captain?
6 Captain Safford: It would be very much weaker.
Y | Mr. Richardson: It would be right along the 1line of the
8 various messages that had been going back and forth for sever-
0 : al days, wauldn'f it?
5 g 10 Captain Safford: That 1s oofreot, as far as the wording
?' i1 18 conocerned.
E 12 Mr. Richardson: You knew that the Japanese-United States
,, 2 3 relations were 1in danger!?
; 14 | Captain Safrofd: We had known that for three months.
. : 13 Mr. Rjichsardson: Now; af ter you saw the messagze, the
i 10 i yellow messaze that phad the written words on it from Lleuten-
1 L7 I ant Kfamer you sent that to Admiral Noyes?
18 Captain Safford: 1I.sent it up to Admlral Ncryes exactly
| 10 as 1t was.,
20 Mr. Richardson: 4And who took 1t up to Adwmiral Noyes?
. 21 Gaptain Safford: Cne of the officers serving under me

23 and I cannot be certaln who it was. It wae probably Lieuten-
a3 ant Howes.
24 Mr. Rqichardson; Lileutenant who?

23 Captain Safford: Howes.
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uTe Rlchardson: Spell it.

Captaln Safford: H-o-w-e-s8, The natural presumption
would be that Kramer or Morey had taken it up thers but both
of them sald they did not and I should think their memory on
that 1s better than mine.

Mr. Rqchardson: Then your ldea as to who took 1t up
1s Just a juess on your part at thils time?

Captain Safford: I stated in my written statement it was
taken up by one of the offlcers serving under me, I did not
|take 1t up myself, and I received a report from him "Messaze

delivered."

lir. Ryjochardson; But you have no reccllection what offi-

ror it was?
i Captain Safford: I cannot be certain.,which of about five

lorfioars who might have taken 1t up actually took it up.

Mr. Richardson: Now, give us the ncmes of the five offi~

cers, one of whom must have taken it up,

]

Captain Safford: From memory 1t was Howes -- I nan give
you the initials later -- Peterson, Densford, Clark or WYhite,

P, R, White, Paul R, White.

Thelr names and present stations are;
Commander Robert L. Densford, U,8.N., Staff, Commanier-

in-Chlef, Pacific leet; headquarters Pearl Harbor, Hawailian

Islandse.
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2 Commander Willlam C. Howes, USNR, 142 Southwest 17th
® 3 || Court, Miami, Florida., I belleve that he has been demobilized.
4 Lieutenant Commander Frederick A, Peterson, Jr., USNR,

5 Southborough, Massachusetts. He has also been demobilized.
8 Commander C., F. Clark, USNR, Pearl Harbor, T.H.
7 And finally Lieutenant Comm:nder Paul =, White, USNR,

8 who 18 on duty in Naval Communlications in Washington.

0 Mr., Murphy: Mr. Chairman, as I understand it this was a

10 1ist of the posslble persons who might have been the one who
{ |
| 11 took the paper to Admiral Noyes.

12 Captain Safford: That is ~orrect.

13 I - The Vice Chairman: Wéll. he Bald, as I understood him,

14 one of those name€ would have.

15 Captain Safford: One of those named.

O MOTOWVMIHEAW . JUAD A GHRAW
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18 The Vice Chairman: Would have had to have takoniit to

17 Admirsl Noyes?

18 I Captain Safford: Yes,

10 || The Vioce Chalrman: All right.
20 | Mr. Rlchardson: One thing further I negleoted to »all to

21 'your attention in circular 2355 and that s the notation to-

22z || ward the end, "When this 1s heard, please deatroy all ~sode
23 || papers,"

24 Captalin Safford: That is ocorrect.

Mr. Richardson: You ars fzmiliar with that?

-

25
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Captaln S afford: Very definively; I was familiar with
that.

Mr. Rychardson: Now, as a matter of fact, Captain, be-
fore this message was recseived thafo had been a series of mes-
8a7es sent out by the Japanese by other methods of communica-
tion all over the world directing the destruction of codes?

Captaln Safford: That 18 orrreot.

Mr, Riochardson: So there wasn't any reuson to use this

|
message on December 4th for that purpose either, was there?

- Captaln Safford: Not for Just the destruction of codes,

L Mr. Richardson: I gee.
Mr, Gearhart: But there was a purpose indlcated by you
in your orizinal statement, was there not?

Captaln Safford: That is correct.

Mr. Gearhart: The British hai destroyed their ocodes.
Hhoro were no Japanese ocodes in London. Thls 18 the only way

they had of informinz the Japanese at London that something wae

iominent?

Captalin Safford: That 1is correct, and the same situation
xlsted at Singapore and Hong Kong.,
Mr, Richardson: I would like at this point, in view of

he interrogation of the Congresasman, to advise the ormmittee
that under date of January 31, 1946 we have a memo andum from

the "ar Department reading as follows:
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"Pursuant to Your request tho'ﬁar Depértnenz.haa

made inquiry of the British ceoncerning the number of coded
mensages s ent by the Japanese representatives 1in London

subsequent to December 2, 194l.

"The War Department has been informed that two coded

messages we e sent by the Japanese representativea 1in

London on the 3rd of De cember 1941 and one coded mes-

sage on the 5th of December 1941 and one coded message
gsent on the 6th of December 1941 and all four messages

were sent on the code system known as BA-KV"

indicating thut coded messages Were proceeding to Enzland

both before and after December 4th,

Qo oNIH2AW . JUAS £ ORAW
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Witness Safford Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairman,may we request that we have
produced the memorandum which the witness acquired two weeks
ago:? If there vas information made availsble to him two
weeks, I think it should be produced at this time.

Mr. Gearhart: May I inquire of counsel? I am inter-
ested in it very, very much., If that is true, as reported
by the British, it merely means the British Ambassador
had violated the instructions and had not destroyed his
codes; isn't that right?

!
|
|

il There were two systems that were exempt from destruc-

J
l Mr. Richardson: I am not going into the implication.
l Captalin Safford: May I explain that?

I tion. One was PA-K2, and the other was 1A, neither of
li which were considered by ourselves as secret, and we presumed

I the Japanese did not consider them secret.

l Mp. Richardson: The only point, Captain, involwd in
’ it would be there was still a method open to the Japanese
to communicate with the British outside of the winds code.
Captain Safford: Yes, but not to communicate secretly.
| I used that word "secretly" in my statement.
| Mr. Gearhart: That is the point.
Senator Lucas: Does the counsel now know what messages

!

wvent from Japan?

‘ My, Richerdson: I read everything that the War Department
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gave us.

What is the system known as PA-K27?

Cuptain Safford: That is a minor aygtom*whidh.had'bonn
in effect for a very long time, and was used for matterq
of negligible importance, but they presumably wanted to keep
up with the newspepers, minor money matters, visas, things
like that.

I believe there were only three or four PA-K2 messags
that had ever been submitted in evidence before this investi-
gation and that were sent by Pearl Harbor after Pearl Harbor
had destroyed its J-19 system, and I do not -- I won't go
into that.

Mr. Richardson: Are you sure, Captain, that you are

correct when you say thati important messages were not sent
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in this code PA-K2?

Ceptein Safford: Until after Pearl Harbor had destroyed
its J-19 system, which really had some securlty.

Mr. Richardson: Let me read you from Exhibit 2, page
29, which is a message that went from Honolulu to Tokyo
on December 6, 1941, It is No. 254,

“1. On the evening of the 5th, amongz the battleships
which entered port were - - - - and one submarine tender.

The following ships were observed at anchor on the 6th:

"9 battle ships, 3 light cruisers, 3 submarine tenders,
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l 17 destroyers, and in addition there were 4 light cruisers,
. 2 destroyers lying at docks (the heavy cruisers and air
5 plane carriers have all left).
: "2. It appears that no air reconnaissance is being
< conducted by the Fleet air arm."
. That would be a rather important message, would it
. not, Gapta;ln?
. Captain Safford: That 1s correct, and that message
i vas sent after the Japanese Consulste had destroyed its
10

J-19 system.
11

Mr. Richardson: Well; there was in existence, between
12 ~
Honoluli and Tokyo, after the winds code had been promulgated
13
| and after the codes had been directed to be destroyed, a
14 |
| method of communicating under PA-K2 that took care of
18
important messages, was there not?
16
Captain Safford: There was not.
17
I Mr. Richardson: There was not?
18
| Captain Safford: PA-K2 was specifically exempt from
19
i destruction by the orders telling them to destroy the other
20
things.
21
Mr. Richardson: All right. It was in existence,
22 |
vasn't 1it?
23
Captain Safford: There was a code of a very low
24
security substantially no better than plain language, which
25
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. they had, and could use.

? Mr. Richardson; Just forget the low security for a
: moment. The code was in existence, wasn't 1it? |
$ Captain Safford: That is correct. E .1‘
: Mr. Richardson: And it was in use, was 1t not?
e Captain Safford: It was in use by one man. 1.,
: Mr. Richerdson: Well, it was in use, was it not?
e Captain Safford: It was in use at one station.
? Mr. Richardson: Well, we only live once. It was in 3

g e use 'by one station, then?

; * Captain Safford: Correct.

i 3 Mr. Richardson: And that man at that one station could

% = send in that code to Tokyo?

E o Captain Sefford: Correct.

Sl Mr. Richardson: And he could send important messages ‘
ke to Tokyo? ’,
" Captain Safford: That is correct. ;
o Mr. Richardson: Was there any reason that London could :
4 not send under that code to Tokyo? -
K Captain Safford: But Tokyo was not sending anything
o iwmportant to London in that code, or to Honolulu.
= Mr. Richardson: Let us not go into that. lLet us
o i inquire whether 1t was possible for London to use that
24

|
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h5 : Captain Safford: It was physically possible.
. 5 | Mr. Richardson: All right.
: Now,do you see anything particularly exciting in a
: code that only broadcasts the weather message? Is not
: that a very low degree of secret information?
5 Captaln Safford: That was set up in what the Japanese
A considered one of the high security systems, their second
: level of security.
i Mr. Richardson: Then it is your idea is it, thatthe
% :‘: Japanese, in promulgating a weather report, a daily weather
. ; < report in the ordinary news broadcast, was putting it into
% thelr most difficult code in order to convince them that
% i it was an ordinary weather broadcast? Is that your testi-
o 5 mony ?
s Captain Safford: Not at all.
N Mr. Richardson: Well, wherein do not we agree?
5 ' Captain Safford: I do not follow you, that is all,
> sir.
N ! Mr. Richardson: What I am interested in 1s this.
& l It was my ldea of the winds code, Captain, that it
. = { vas to be used to decelve other nations, because the broadcast-
22

ing of weather information in a news broadcast was relatively

23
‘ unimportant, and by injecting certain key words in that mes-
24 |

Sage you could use the humble method of a news broadcast
25
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to convey very important information.

Now, was that right?

Captaln Safford: That is not correct.

Mr. Richardson: Well, all right. Give me your
explanation.

Captain Safford: The Japanese Government had been

' sending these news broadcasts to its stations overseas,

diplomatic posts, for several months. They were always
copled; they knew they could be heard, and therefore if they
wanted to send a message not through any commercial channels
and be certain it would not be held up by censorship or
delayed purposely, as sometimes happens, to be absolutely
certalin of it, they could include a war wvarning message

Or anything else of that nature in one of their own news
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broadcasts, which they controlled,

They could not afford to send it out in Plain language,
that "we are going to have war," thy had to give it a some-
what disguised form which could be unﬁerstoodwhenroceived.

Mr, Richardson: ‘ﬁhy'would they put it in a weather
messaga?

Ceptain Safford: Because that is meraly the form that
they happened to choose for it. If we had merely the word

"higashi" and the rest of it, and hed not had the translation

of these messages, we would not have had the slightast ides
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what they were talking about.

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairmen, the witness has said this
could be tra.na.lated easlly, as I understand it, the one
sent from Honolulu to Tokyo. I think it is important,
since 1t says "it appears that no air reconnaissance is
being conducted by the Fleet air arm,"

I do not see why it could not have been translated
before December 8., It is of the utmost importance.

Mr. Richardson: I did not get your point.

Mr. Murphy: It was sent out on the 6th, and not trans-
lated until the 8th, and it says, "it appears that no air
reconnalssance is being conducted by the Fleet air arm."

That was an important message from Honolulu to Tokyo,

80 why was not it translated before the 8th?
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Mr. Richardson: Well, my assoclate augéosts to
me that that is an Army translation.
Mr. Murphy: He said it is easy. It is one of the
zl most important messages.
i Mr, Richerdson: Well, you can take it up with him.
' Now, Captain, will you turn -- '
q Senator Lucas: Mr. Chairman, I suggest that we let
l] counsel proceed in order so as not to interrupt h;s train
: of thought.
; The Vice Chairman: Yes, I think it 1is better if counsel
'1 proceeds.
! Go ghead, counsel.

Mp. Richerdson: Ceptain, let me call your attention
to Decument No. 4 -- 3(d) of Exhibit 142,

-3
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Captain Safford: That is what?
Mr. Richarﬁabn: It is 3(d).
Captaln Safford: That is correct.

Mr, Richardson: Entitled "Document No., 4. "

Captain Safford: Yes, sir,

Mr. Richerdson: Now, referring back to 2353, what did
West Wind Clear mean when translated under th2 Japanese
phrase, according to 2353%

Ceptain Safford: According to the full and correct

transletion of 2353, it meant Jepan-British relations in-
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cluding invasion of Thalland and occupation of Malaey and
the Netherlands East Indies.

Mr. Richardson: Now, turning to document 4, that you
have there, have you not, a full admitted execute of the
vinds message é353, don't you?

Captain Safford: That 1is correct.

Mr. Richerdson: And the words "West Winds Clear" -
ars repsated twice?

Captain Safford: That is correct.

Mr. Richardson: At the end of the document?

Captain Safford: It would appear they were repsated
twice in the middle of the document rather than the end.

Mr. Richardson: Did that message "Document No. 4"

did that look anything like the message that you saw on
the morning of December 77

Captan Sarfor&: No, sir, because this was a transcript
of a voice broadcast, and what I saw was the Morse broadcast.

Mr. Richardson: Then the only actual execute that we
all agree was sent, didn't look anything like the message
that Kramer handed to you on the morning of Dscember 4,

did 1t?
Captain Safford: That is correct.

Mr. Richardson: Now, you have been very much concerned

about this wind éxecute, haven't you, Captain, for a number




